
 
1 of  3 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 9, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the reappointment of Michael Sulentic 

to the Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2024. 
 

b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of July 9, 2018 relative to the following 
items: 
(1) Library Board of Trustees Interview - Michael Sulentic.  
(2) Recycling Facility Update. 
(3) Floodplain Ordinance. 
(4) Bills & Payroll. 
 

c. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified 
list for the position of Accountant. 
 

d. Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 
 

e. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(2) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - adding Class C beer. 
(3) Community Main Street (FondoFest), 100 and 200 block of Main Street, Special Class C 
liquor & outdoor service - 5-day permit. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Affiliate TV Agreement with Hawkeye 

Sports Properties, LLC relative to rights to broadcast certain programs on Channel 15. 
 

b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Beau's 



 
2 of  3 

 

Beautiful Blessings, Inc. relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

c. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar 
Falls Community Theatre, Inc. relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar 
Falls Historical Society relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar 
Falls Woman's Club relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar 
Falls College Hills Partnership relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Eagle 
View Partners (on behalf of River Place Plaza) relative to an FY19 Community Betterment 
Grant. 
 

h. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the George 
Wyth State Park, Iowa Department of Natural Resources, relative to an FY19 Community 
Betterment Grant. 
 

i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the North 
Cedar Neighborhood Association relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Volunteer 
Center of the Cedar Valley relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls Symphony Orchestra Association relative to an FY19 Community Betterment 
Grant. 
 

l. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of an 
automated side load body for a refuse vehicle from Kilburg Equipment. 
 

m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for the Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer 
Review. 
 

n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. relative to the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 
 

o. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Amendment Number One to the Project 
Subaward Agreement with Iowa Homeland Security & Emergency Management Department 
relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. 
 

p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Purchase Offer with Craig and Kathleen 
Olmstead, in conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. (Contingent 
upon approval of Item E-2.o.) 
 

q. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property 
located at 1122 Clay Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 
Incentive Program. 
 

r. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
Riverwise Engineering, LLC relative to the Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project. 



 
3 of  3 

 

 
s. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed plans, 

specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, 
Zone 9. 
 

t. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from R-3, Multiple Unit Residential, to C-3, High Density Commercial, of property located at 
1015 & 1021 West 22nd Street, and also on an associated amendment to the Schematic 
Land Use Map by changing the designation from High Density Residential to Neighborhood 
Commercial/Mixed Use. 
 

u. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City's 
floodplain regulations. 
 

v. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
the Zoning Agreement relative to conditions of the R-4 Residential Zoning District for 
property described as Lots 7 & 8 of Midway Business Park. 
 

3. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering 
and disposal of dead animals, upon its first consideration. 
 

F. Allow Bills. 
 

G. City Council Referrals. 
 

H. City Council Updates. 
 

I. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy with 
counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its disclosure 
would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that litigation, 
following Public Forum. 
 

J. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

K. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 9, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
51951 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of June 18, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring July 12, 2018 as Big Brothers Big 
Sisters Day. Big Brothers Big Sisters of Northeast Iowa Chief Executive Officer Katie 
Orlando and Big Sister Amanda Gilbert commented. 

 
51952 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 
members to Boards and Commissions: 

(1) Michael Mangin, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2023. 
 (2) Seth Chadwick, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2024. 
 (3) Glynis Worthington, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2024. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 18, 2018 relative to 
the following items: 
 (1) Board of Adjustment Interview - Michael Mangin. 
 (2) Library Board of Trustees Interview - Seth Chadwick. 
 (3) Library Board of Trustees Interview - Glynis Worthington. 
 (4) Greater Cedar Valley Alliance Update. 
 (5) Review of 2018 Bond Sale Bids. 
 (6) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of June 11, 2018. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of May 2018. 
 
Approve the application of Janelle Wilks, d/b/a Nelly's Dogs, for a Mobile Merchant 
license in the Downtown and College Hill areas. 
 
Approve the following applications for liquor licenses: 
 (1) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 

(2) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - sidewalk café. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

51953 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #21,177, authorizing and providing for the issuance of $5,940,000 

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018, and levying a tax to pay said bonds; and 
approving the Tax Exemption Certificate and Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

 
Resolution #21,178, amending an inter-fund loan from the Capital Projects Fund to 
the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project and the Bluff 
Street Lift Station. 

 
Resolution #21,179, amending an inter-fund loan (#1) from the Health Trust Fund to 
the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project. 
 

 Resolution #21,180, amending an inter-fund loan (#2) from the Health Trust Fund to 
the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project. 
 

 Resolution #21,181, amending an inter-fund loan (#3) from the Health Trust Fund to 
the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project. 
 

  Resolution #21,182, amending an inter-fund loan (#4) from the Health Trust Fund to 
the Sewer Enterprise Fund relative to funding for the Water Reclamation UV 
Disinfection & Biosolids Handling Facilities Improvements Project, Bluff Street Lift 
Station and Park Drive Lift Station. 
 
Resolution #21,183, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
abate the nuisance by demolition and removal of buildings on the property located at 
216 Iowa Street. 
 
Resolution #21,184, approving and authorizing execution of an Easement 
Agreement, in conjunction with a sidewalk café at 402 Main Street. 
 
Resolution #21,185, approving and accepting two Permanent Utility Easements, in 
conjunction with the Highway 58 & Viking Road Project. 

 
Resolution #21,186, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman 
Concrete for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. 
 
Resolution #21,187, approving the transfer of Lot 1, River Place 4th Addition from 
State Street Residences, LC to Community Main Street, Inc. pursuant to the 
Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties LC. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,177 through #21,187 duly passed and 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

adopted. 
 
51954 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payrolls be allowed 

as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue City 
checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
51955 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole Code Section 14-149, a requirement that parking lots and parking areas of 
rental properties be hard-surfaced, for amendment or repeal, and suspend 
enforcement until a determination is made by the Committee. Councilmembers 
Wieland, deBuhr, Darrah, Green, Miller and Kruse commented. Following a brief 
process explanation by Community Development Director Sheetz and referral 
clarification by City Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Kruse, Blanford, Green. 
Nay: deBuhr, Darrah, Wieland. Motion Carried.  

 
 Following the vote, Councilmember deBuhr requested advance notice on referrals as 

agreed to in City Council Goal Setting. Councilmembers deBuhr, Blanford, Miller, 
Kruse, Wieland and Green provided additional comments. 

 
51956 -   Mayor Brown requested a Fireworks update and Public Safety Services Director 

Olson provided information referencing the number of calls this year compared to 
last year and a comparison to other cities, and responded to a question by 
Councilmember Blanford regarding police responses on July 4th. 

 
  The Mayor then introduced Northern Iowa Student Government (NISG) Liaison 

Jacob Madden, who briefly commented. 
 
51957 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:52 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 
 

-3-

Item C. 



 



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: July 10, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment 

 

I am recommending the following reappointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Michael Sulentic Library Board of Trustees (reappointment) 06/30/2024 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 
 

-5-

Item E.1.a. 



 



-7-

Item E.1.a. 



-8-

Item E.1.a. 



-9-

Item E.1.a. 



 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

July 9, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:50 p.m. on July 9, 2018, 
with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Pro Tem Tom Blanford, 
Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David Wieland. 
Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Tom Nelson with the Waterloo 
Courier, Lyndsey Anderson and Tammy Turner both with Waste Trac and other 
members of the community attended.  

Mayor Pro Tem Blanford called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the 
agenda of Library Board of Trustee Interview of Michael Sulentic.  Mr. Sulentic gave the 
committee a brief history of himself.  He stated he is a UNI graduate and resident for 
over 25 years.  A brief discussion was held. 

Mayor Pro Tem Blanford introduced the second item on the agenda Recycling Facility 
Update.  Brian Heath Public Works and Parks Manager updated the committee on the 
recycling facility.  He stated they continue to have destination based drop off sites for 
recycling.  The City has six locations.  He stated there are environmental concerns with 
curbside recycling including fossil fuel consumption, noise and air pollution, equipment 
maintenance and quality of recyclables.  He stated the recyclables are picked up sorted 
and most of the products are made into mill grade bales.  Mr. Heath stated this is our 
second full year of shingle recycling.  The recycled shingles go into making new asphalt 
roads.   Other items recycled are appliances, glass, electronic waste, batteries, tires, 
and scrap metal.  He stated by providing this service this reduces that amount of waste 
going to the landfill; this equates to 18.42% overall diversion rate.  Mr. Heath reviewed 
the commodity pricing for the last three years.  He stated there are global factors 
affecting the commodity pricing such as policy’s enacted by China and oil prices.    
Mayor Pro Tem Blanford opened it up for questions from Council.  Mr. Heath answered 
questions with regards to curbside recycling, additional drop off sites and shingle 
recycling.  He stated they continue to look for additional recycling initiatives such as 
recycling used carpet.   

Mr. Heath introduced Lyndsey Anderson and Tammy Turner from Waste Trac.  Ms. 
Anderson explained they are located at 1500 Bluff Street, the old Public Works office 
location.  She stated they have a hotline for residents to call in on for questions they 
may have.  They also have information on the Black Hawk County Solid Waste 
Management Commission website and Facebook and they send out newsletters.  Ms. 
Turner stated they are having a drop off event on September 22, at the City Municipal 
Operations Complex at 2200 Technology Parkway.  She stated they continue to seek 
volunteers for the event.  She stated in prior years they have had as much as 100 
pallets of electronics dropped off.   Ms. Turner reviewed statistics from a statewide 
garbage characterization study completed by Iowa-DNR.  She explained that food 
waste is the second highest for 2017.   

-11-

Item E.1.b. 



Top 5 Categoies of MSW

Typle of Waste 2005 2011 2017

Paper (Includes Cardboard) 33.00% 25.20% 25.50%

Plastic 14.90% 16.70% 18.30%

Food Waste 10.60% 13.30% *20.00%

Construction 13.50% 13.50% 5.40%

72.00% 68.70% 49.20%

* 2017 (Food waste includes both loose and packaged food)  
She said they continue to coordinate education events and outreach activities at the 
landfill and the Cedar Falls Recycling Facility. A brief discussion was held. 

Mayor Pro Tem Blanford introduced the third item on the agenda, Floodplain Ordinance. 
David Sturch, Planner III reviewed the amendments recommend by Iowa DNR after 
their visit to the City of Cedar Falls in 2017.  He explained these changes will help in 
administering our floodplain program and how staff is monitoring it.  He reviewed the 
changes, which added definitions; performance standards for detached structures; and 
will maintain consistency with the floodplain regulations in the zoning ordinance and the 
storm water management program.  He explained the City is in good standing with the 
IA-DNR and the National Flood Insurance Program.  Mr. Sturch explained the proposed 
changes to the definitions subsection and that they will help Cedar Falls continue to 
keep their good rating with the Community Rating System Program.  He explained 
these have been reviewed by Planning & Zoning Commission this spring. Frank Darrah 
motioned to have staff draft the amendment to the floodplain ordinance.  Rob Green 
seconded the motion. A brief discussion was held.  The motion carried unanimously. 

Mayor Pro Tem introduced the final item on the agenda bills and two payrolls.  Susan 
deBuhr motioned to approve the bills as presented and Frank Darrah seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

There being no further discussion Mayor Pro Tem Blanford adjourned the meeting at 
6:53 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-12-

Item E.1.b. 



-13-

Item E.1.c. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9 
  SW-000-3113 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, August 6th, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, August 14th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to 
Bidders be published by July 20, 2018. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications 
will be ready for distribution to contractors on July 20, 2018 allowing more than two (2) 
weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to property owner. The 
project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess the 
cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been completed, the 
Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will then send 
notice to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will have 30 days to 
pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner doesn’t pay the bill 
in 30 days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ property taxes and 
spread over 5 years with an interest rate set by City Council.  
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $29,884.18. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-15-

Item E.1.d. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  July 11, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

(2) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - adding Class C beer. 

(3) Community Main Street (FondoFest), 100 and 200 block of Main Street, Special 
Class C liquor & outdoor service - 5-day permit. 

-17-

Item E.1.e. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M
Information Systems Division

 

 TO: Mayor Jim Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: July 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Agreement between Hawkeye Sport Properties and Cable Channel 15 

 

It is time to renew our agreement with Learfield Sports for Hawkeye Sports 
programming.  We have offered these services through Cable Channel 15 in the past 
and recommend continuing to do so next year.   
 
This agreement would be for 26 programs throughout the next year and would total a 
financial responsibility of $1,352.00.  This amount has been budgeted in the 2019 Cable 
TV Budget.   
 
The agreement is attached here for your approval.  City attorney, Kevin Rogers, has 
reviewed and approved the agreement.  If you need further information please feel free 
to contact myself or Denny Bowman.  
 
 
Attachment:  Agreement 

-19-

Item E.2.a. 



 



AFFILIATE TV AGREEMENT 
# 

This agreement ("Agrce111c11t") is entered into as of the C/ dny of :fU.y, 2018 by and between 
HAWKEYE SPORTS PROPERTIES, LLC ("NETWOIU<."), and Licensee of Television Station Cedar 
Falls Utilities Clrnnnel L5 of Cedar Palls, IA ("STATION"). 

WHEREAS, NflTWORK warrants that it has obtoined and holds the rights to televise the University of 
Iowa Event(s) listed in Exhibit A. 

WHEREAS, STATION warrnnts that it has the capability lo televise the Eve11ts listed in Exhibit A in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

For good aud valuable consideration, NETWORK un<l STATION agree as follows: 

l . NETWORK will deliver to STATION the Event(s) via FTP site file transfer for Events listed on 
Exhibit A 

2. 
u. STATION will cause the Event(s) to be televised over its television facilities at the times 

shown and on tl1e dates set forth on Exhibit A hereto. The format of the television 
broadcasts shull be in High Dcfiniti~. W ilhout NETWORK prlor written approval, none 
of the Events may be broadcastcd on u delay or edited basis. Any and nil costs of 
receiving the satellite signal by lhe STATION are to be paid by STATION. STATION is 
responsible for all equipment necessary to receive Ilic satellite delivery signal. 

b. NETWORK will provide for nnd pay for closed captioning service for the Evenls listed in 
bxhibil A. STATION acknowledges that additional closed captioning services beyond 
the Events needs arc responsibility of STATION, 

c. STATION will pay a'rights fee ofl,352.00. NETWORK will invok'C STATION in one 
sum prior to September 1'1, 2016 and each subsequent year of the tenn. 

3. STATION shall retain four (4) :30 second units of couunercial inventory per show for local 
advertisers and STATION promotional spots none ofwhieh can include the excluded categories 
011 Exhibit B to this Agreement. STATION'S retained· advertisements shall not discriminate on 
the basis of race or ethnicity. STA TlON shall not conduel or promote nny contest or sweepstokos 
during the broadcast of the Events without the prior wdtten co.nsent of NETWORK. NETWORK 
shall retain oH remaining commercial and promotional invento1y, including (14) :30 second units 
for each show. As such, STATION musl supply upon requcsl NETWORK with n programming 
schedule as prooftbnt shows aired as schednled within seven days ofrequest. 

4. Should STATION'S national network commitments including events of national impo1tance pre
empt the time slot agreed upon in Ex.hibiL A, STATION has the right to schedule the program for 
broadcast during a different, mutually agreed upon time period. 

5. STATION shall provide to NETWORK. a copy of the airedEvent(s) upon request imd send to 
address in Exhibit C. 

6. If Event i.s not broa<lcastcd by STATION as a result of STATION's fault, (for lhe avoidance of 
doubt, by way of example, ifthe uplink operator determines that the signal was properly sent or 
verities that the signal wos received by other network affiliates, then lhnt sl1nll be conclusive 
evidence that the signal was delivered by the NETWORK lo the STATION), STATJON shall 
make good the airing of the Event in a comparable time slot to the time slot in which the Event 
was originally scheduled to air along with the cost of re-sending the l!atellite signal or re
transmitting the Event, as the cnse may be. For th.e avoidance of doubt, if the Event was to have 
aired in prime time, then the make good niring of the Event shall likewise be aired in prime time. 

-21-

Item E.2.a. 



7. ST A TlON will promote each lelocast in a manner satisfactory to NB'I'WORK and will, upon 
req\lest, provide proof of promotional effort to LEARFIELD. STATION will provide 
NETWORK the opportunit)I to review all promotional spots to ensure compliance with NCAA 
and conference rules and regulations. STA TlON agrees to comply wi1b oil NCAA and 
conferenceru.les and regulations applicable to broadcasts of the Events and STATION's 
advertisers. STATION has the right to have promotJone.I spots sponsored with prior wrilten 
approval from NBTWORK and in compliance witl1 excluded categories listed in Exhil>it a 
("Excluded Advertisements"). 

8. STATION agrees not to allow aoy broadcast which is supplied to STATION by NETWORK to 
be used for any purpose other thnD live linear televised brondcasting pursuant to this Agreeme111', 
on-air STATION promotion of the Events, or use on STATION's news and sports reports (each a 
"Permitted Use"). Other than a Penuittcd Use, eny other UBe whatsoever ofNBTWORK 
broodoastby STATION or by any party acting under separate ngreemenl with STATION or 
nffiliated with STATION (including but not limited to internet distribution, smart phone 
distribution, any other type mobile distribution, podcostlng, and or through its website es welt 11s 
any re-broadc11St ill any medjum of any kind now in existence or in the future) is proWbitcd unless 
il is expressly approved in writlng by NETWORK which approval may be withheld or granted by 
NETWORK in its solo and absolute discrcti6n. STATION acknowledges antl agrees that all 
content with respect to lhe Bvents televised under this Agreement belongs ex.elusively to the 
NETWORK. and STATION shall have no rights of any kind in and to tho content ex~t to the 
extent required in connection with the performance of its services under this Agreement. 

9. In fu.r1herance of this Agreement, in an effort to promote the University Eve.o.ls and ST A TlON's 
production and broadcast of the Events, STATION may use the University's ne.mc and licensed 
marks, including but not limited to 1ogos, design aud trademarks (the "Maries") solely for 
promotlonal purposes and In connection with the rights graotod herein, subjoot to the following 
terms and conditions: 

a. STATION has no right, title or interest in the Marks and the Marks shall remain the sole 
propertY of the University; 

b. STATION 's 11sc of the Marks shall not denigrate or diminish the integrity, character aml 
dignity of the University or the Marks; 

c. STATION's use of the Marks Is subject to applicable rules and regulations regarding 
promotions of the University, the University's conference and the NCAA; 

d. STATION's use of the Marks is subject to the approval of the Universily, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withl1eld or delayed. 

e. In no case shall any commercial announcements on tho STATION indicate that the 
University. the grune broadcast, the t1layor11 or any formal aclivity wlthin a home stadiun1 
or atone in which a game is played, i11 being provided or conducted on behalf of the 
sponsor, or is in any way the product of the sponsor, or the STATION, without the prior 
consent of University. 

f. STATION has no right to sell a promotionnl license for usage of th.e University of Iowa 
Athletic Department marks, logos, designs, trademarks or name to any advertiser. This 
prohibits station from using the marks in any way other than to promote upcoming Events 
broadcast on STATION. Furthermore, at no time may STATION license any rights to 
use the University madcs to any advertisers for use on or off*air. 

10. NETWORK shall indelllllify 11nd hold STATION bannless against any and all claims, damages, 
liabilities, costs and cxpemcs, including reasonable attorney's fees. arising out of, or caused by, 
the content of the programs. STATION shall indemnify and hold NBTWORK harmless against 
nny and all olaima, damaaes, Uabillties, costs and <mpenses, including reasonable attorney's fees 
arising from lho broadcatt of the programs or any acts or omission on the part of the STATION 
including, but not limited to, any slanderous 11tatemcnts mnde during broadcasts, violations of 

-22-

Item E.2.a. 



NCAA rules and regulations, violations of Federal Communications Commission ("FCC'') rules 
or regulallo11s or ihe bro11dcasti11g of any Bxclud.ed Advertisements. 

l I. Subject to the ptovisions of paragraph 13 d) any delay in or failure by either N BTW ORK or 
STATION in performance of tJ1Js AGRBBMBNT shall be excused if and to 1he extent such delay 
or failuro is caused by OCOUITODces beyond the control of the affected party including, but not 
!united to, decrees or restraints of government, octs oftorror, acts of Ood, strikes or other labor 
disturba11oes ox tended loss of power which prevents the broadcast of a game, war or sabotage 
(en ch being 11 "Force Majeure Event"), provid~ that when a Force Maje11re Bvoot occurs, the 
affected party shall promptly give written notice lhe~eof to lho other party 1 which uotice shall 
include a description of the Force Majeuro Event ond the affected party's best ostjmatc oftlte 
length of time suoh Force Majeul'e Event will delny or prevent performance of thi.s Agreement. 

12. This Agreement is subjoct to all federal, stale, and local laws and regu.latlons, Including 
regulatioJis and orders of the Fcd~ral COlllDlunications Commission. 

13. a. The tenn oftbis Agreement shall commence on tho date set forth above and shnJI 
continue, unless sooner terminated, through lune 30111

, 2020, NETWORK shall have the rJght 
to lenninate the agreement by provldiug written notice to the STATION no later !hen March 
31" of each term yeor. 

b. If STATION breaches any provision of this Agreement and fails to cure such brvach withi11 
len ( l 0) dnys ofter NETWORK gives uolice of such breach, NBTWORK wiU ha vo tho right 
to termi11atc this Agreement, anu such tcmlination ~ball occur and become effective upon 
NETWORK'S deli~ety to STA TlON of a written notification of telDlinatioo. Neither party 
shall be released from liabilities for its obligations or default hereunder, incurred or 
occurring prior to such termination. 

c. NETWORK muy immediately tenninnle this Agreement nt 1111y time without penalty or nny 
financial obligation to STATION if it no longor has the right to broadcast University of Iowa 
nlhlclic Event!!, if STATION brondcasts ony Bx.eluded Advertisements or ifSTATJON 
violates any NCAA, con(crenco or FCC rules and regulations applicable to broadc11sts of the 
Events. 

d. In the evont ST A 1'10N ceases operation for any rcasou inolllding as a result of a Force 
Majeurc Event, STATION agrees to notify NETWORK immediately, aud NETWORK may 
immediately terminate this Agreement without written notice and Jn such event. NETWORK 
may have Ifie events broadcasted on another station without any liability of any kind of 
NETWORK to STATION. 

14. 111is Agreeme.nt shnll be binding upon the succe.~sors and assigns ofbot11 parties; provided, 
however, STATION may not anign this Agreement orits obligations hereunder without 
NETWORK'S prlor writte11 consent which may be granted or withheld iu its sole discretion. 
STATION will immodiately notify NETWORK of any application to the Federal 
Communications Commission for the transfer of any interest Jn the STATION or any assignment 
of tile license to opmte tho ST A'l10N. Any such assigowent or transfer shall exprosaly stale that 
the aRsignee or transferee assumes all obligations of STATION contained in this Agreement. 
Notwithstanding such transfer or assignment, NETWORK shall have the right to tenninato thls 
Agreement, if in the sole opinion ofNBTWORK, the asiiignment or transfer renders STATION 
less valuable lo NETWORK for any reason or crcat.es any other concem of NETWORK relating 
to whothor the perfonnanco of services will continue at tltc so.mo level prior lo the assignment or 
transfer. Further, should STATION change its network affiliation lo another network affiliation, 
NETWORK shall have the right to terminate this AgreCllllcnt upon notice to STATION if in 
NETWORK's solo opinion lbe change in NETWORK's affiliation will render STATJON le.c;s 
valuable to NRTWORK and Its sponsors. 

15. STATION acknowledges that its facilities are of unique character and value, the loss of which 
cannot be adequately compensated for in damages in an actlon at law, and that broach by 
STATION ofthiB Agreement w!ll cause NETWORK irreparable injury. STATlON therefore 

-23-

Item E.2.a. 



• 

agrees that in addition to such other legal remedies 11s may be available, NETWORK will be 
entitled to Injunctive and other equitable relief in the event of, or to prevent, a brcac11 of this 
Agreement by STATION. 

16. NBITHER PARTY SHALL BB LlAilLE TO THB OTHER PARTY FOR ANY SPBClAL OR 
PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY NATURE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LJMITED TO LOST 
PROFITS, ARISING OUT OF OR RBLATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR TH 13 
TRANSACTION'S OR ACTlVITIBS CONTEMPLATED HERBIN, WHETHER SUCH 
LlABILITY IS ASSERTED BASED ON ALLEGED BREACH OR TERMINATION OF THIS 
AGREBMENT OR ON TORT LlABILlTY (EXCEPT FOR WILLFUL OR GROSSLY 
NEGLIGENT CONDUCT) OR OTHBRWlSB, EVEN lP SUCH DAMAGE WAS 
FORESEBABLil OR THB PJ\RTWS WERE AWARE OP THB POSSIBILITY OP ANY SUCH 
LOSS OR DAMAGE. 

17. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the p1111ies hereto relating to the subject 
maller and cannot be cbnngod or amended orally. The laws of the State of Iowa shall govern the 
vt11idity, interpretation, and legal effect of this Agreement. The invaliruty or unenforceabUity of 
any provisioo of this Agreement shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any olher 
provision of the Agrecinent. Except for routine infonnation exchanges, each notice given 
hereunder must be sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service to the principal 
bu.qiness office otthe other party nud shall be deemed given when sent in such a manner. 

18. This Agreement supersedes a11y and all prior television broadcasting agreements or other 
understandings whatsoever. Neillicr this Agreement nor any provisions thereof shall be binding 
011 NSTWORK until this Agreement is executed by one ofNETWORK's duly authorized 
represontatives. 

Signature page to follow 

-24-

Item E.2.a. 



.$.ignntmc J>nge 

The parties have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and first written above, by having their 
respective authorized officers sign below. Until executed by Learfie!cJ Sports, LLC, this Agreement shall 
not become effective. 

City ol' Ceclnr Falls Chnnnel JS 

B~~fl'f~m---
Tll ~ ·: Cp_b/e_ '-fl) ~U'tli' :,<)(" 

LEe=S,LLC 
BY: -Aaron Worsham, Sr. VP, Affiliate Relations nnd Broadcast Operations, Mulli-Media Rights 

-25-

Item E.2.a. 



EXHIBIT A 

Unlverslty oflowa TV Schedule 
For Telecast on Cedar Falls Utilities Channel 15 

Football Coach•a Show Schedule 

• Fourteen (14) shows to air Tuesday•s at 8:30 PM (CT) 
*Re-air Thursday's at 8:30PM CT 

Men's Basketball Coach's Show Schedule 

• Twelve (12) shows to air Tuesday's at 8:30 PM (CT) 
"'Re-air Thursday's at 8:30PM CT 

a Official cJeamnce dates to be determined 
o Approximate clearance December to March 

-26-

Item E.2.a. 



EXHIBITB 

.Excluded Advertising Categories 

STA T!ON ,nay use its local inventory to advertise nny product except for tho following 
catego1ies unless othelWise reviewed and authorized in advance by NETWORK.: 

• Gambling (except state authorized loltecy) 
• Liquor (except wine and malt beverage) 
• Prophylactics 
• Erectile dysfunction medication 
• Feminine hygiene products 
• Tobacco products 
• Bail bonds 
• Sexually explicit material 
• Any advortisement advocating the olection or defeat of a candidttte for 

local, state or federal office 
• Any advertisement involving other political Jnaterial or controversial 

issues of public opinion 

Additional Excluded Advertising Categories 

ln addition to tho ox.eluded LBARFIBLD categories above, the following categorlcs are excluded 
within the respective school Events as follows: 

University of Iowa- Hawkeye Sports Properties 
• Wireless Provider!! 
• Grocery 

-27-

Item E.2.a. 



EXHIBITC 

1. COACH'S SHOW PROGRAM DELIVERY 

a. lf requested during tho scnson, STA TlON will provide NETWORK witb a copy of 
p1'0grammiog upon request via NBTWORK's Cloud Drive. 

-28-

Item E.2.a. 



CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 

Due to the sensitive nature of the respective pending agreement between STATION and 
NE1WORK/Univetslty, we recognize the Importance of publiclzlng this news externally In 
complete oollaboratlon with Learneld and the University at the proper and agl'tled upon date 
and time. Furthermore, Learfleld Spor1s PR will initiate the announcement press release and 
facilitate the process. 

By signing this documentation, STATION fully acl<nowledges that It will not vlo1ate 
NETWORKS' or our partner's schools protocol by leaklng news of this pending agreement or 
advanclng It in any way vie soclal media, onllne postings or local, regional or national media 
that would jeopardize the oppor1unlty for a Urned, collaborative aMouncement. That wlll be 
determined once all parties have signed the agreement 

Name Company Date 

-29-

Item E.2.a. 



 



-31-

Item E.2.b. 



-32-

Item E.2.b. 



-33-

Item E.2.b. 



-34-

Item E.2.b. 



-35-

Item E.2.b. 



-36-

Item E.2.b. 



-37-

Item E.2.b. 



-38-

Item E.2.b. 



-39-

Item E.2.b. 



-40-

Item E.2.b. 



-41-

Item E.2.b. 



-42-

Item E.2.b. 



-43-

Item E.2.b. 



-44-

Item E.2.b. 



-45-

Item E.2.b. 



-46-

Item E.2.b. 



-47-

Item E.2.b. 



-48-

Item E.2.b. 



-49-

Item E.2.b. 



-50-

Item E.2.b. 



-51-

Item E.2.b. 



-52-

Item E.2.b. 



-53-

Item E.2.b. 



-54-

Item E.2.b. 



-55-

Item E.2.b. 



-56-

Item E.2.b. 



-57-

Item E.2.b. 



-58-

Item E.2.b. 



-59-

Item E.2.b. 



-60-

Item E.2.b. 



-61-

Item E.2.b. 



-62-

Item E.2.b. 



-63-

Item E.2.b. 



-64-

Item E.2.b. 



-65-

Item E.2.b. 



-66-

Item E.2.b. 



-67-

Item E.2.b. 



-68-

Item E.2.b. 



-69-

Item E.2.b. 



-70-

Item E.2.b. 



-71-

Item E.2.b. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS 
DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

       FROM: Brian M. Heath, Public Works/Parks Div. Manager  

 DATE: July 10, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Equipment Purchase 

 

The Public Works and Parks Division recently opened bids for an automated side load 
body which is budgeted in FY19. As you may be aware, refuse body components are bid 
separate of the chassis. The chassis was bid out and recently approved for purchase in a 
previous council meeting. Now we are seeking to move forward with procuring the body 
portion of the apparatus. The results of the automated side load refuse packer body are 
as follows; 
 
                     Curbtender Inc.                                         $ 92,670.00 
                      Kilburg Equipment                                $108,298.00 
                       Elliott Equipment Corp.                         $112,320.00 
 
Of the three bidders, Curbtender was the lowest bid received. However, after the bids 
were received, Curbtender requested that the City allow them to void their bid and 
consented that the city consider purchasing from the next lowest bid. Kilburg Equipment 
is a dealership for Lebrie Side Loaders which is the same build as some of the City’s 
existing fleet. Labrie has a proven track record to be a very efficient and reliable unit. 
  
Municipal Operations and Programs Department is recommending acceptance of the 
second lowest bid submitted from Kilburg Equipment for the purchase of a Lebrie 
automated side load body for the City of Cedar Falls in the amount of $108,298.00.  
 
The total combined cost of the unit including chassis is $204,006.00. This expenditure is 
budgeted for FY19 and will be paid from the refuse fund. 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have questions. 
 
CC: Mark Ripplinger, Director 

 

 

 

-73-

Item E.2.l. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement 
  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
  Foth Infrastructure & Environmental LLC 
  Project No. EN-289-3167 
 
Please find attached the Professional Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & 
Environment, LLC that outlines the scope of services and costs for the Henry Property 
Traffic Impact Study Peer Review. 
 
Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC was the firm selected by Community 
Development. The enclosed agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment provides 
for a peer review of the traffic impact study for the proposed development in the 
southwest corner of the Hwy 58 and Ridgeway Avenue intersection. The traffic impact 
study is necessary to determine the existing and future roadway capacity and safety 
needs of the area roadways resulting from the development. The development is large 
and will likely have a significant impact on the area roadways. As a result, Community 
Development requests an independent firm to review and verify the results of the traffic 
impact study completed by the developer. 
 
The cost of this project falls within our Engineering budget under account 101-2225-
432.86-25 Engineering and Architecture. The cost of this agreement is in the amount 
not to exceed $7,975. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment for the 
Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 

-75-

Item E.2.m. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
Henry Property Traffic Impact Peer Review 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number: EN-289-3167  

 
 
  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC, 8191 
Birchwood Court Johnston Iowa 50131, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no cost 
to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor and 
materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 

-77-

Item E.2.m. 



quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, require 

from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures equipment, 
materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such equipment, materials 
and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT to the full extent of the 
terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such equipment, and materials 
obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be limited to procuring 
guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all reasonable assistance to 
CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that any 
estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. CONSULTANT 
does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary from the opinions 
of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives any and all claims 
that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the results 
of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, which 
are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set out word 
for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
 

-78-

Item E.2.m. 



 
 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a not 
to exceed a fee of seven thousand nine hundred seventy-five dollars ($7,975.00). 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement may 
be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial failure 
by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating 
party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a non-monetary 
default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the termination in accordance 
with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments of 
service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities. 
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different than 

those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no warranty as to 
the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of the potential 
degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between the sealed 
original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 
IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures 
and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, in connection 

-79-

Item E.2.m. 



with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction contractors, 
subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of such contractors; 
or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall not have the 
right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the CLIENT. In 
no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the construction 
work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under contracts with 
CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely responsible 
for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility and/or 
transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of such 
waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s obligations or 
responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of any pre-existing 
contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required forms relating to 
regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, treatment, 
transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party shall 
notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable to 
resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be submitted 
for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association (or 
any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute to mediation can 
be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between receipt of notice and 
submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT 
and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition required 
before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the negotiations or the mediation 
either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, and 

-80-

Item E.2.m. 



CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have to obtain security for the 
payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, 
Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 

any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or communications 
heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be changed, modified, or 
amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event of any conflict between 
this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms and conditions of Exhibit C 
shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved by 

CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and CONSULTANT 

and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its exhibits 
limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either party that are 
available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  __James P. Brown________  Printed Name: Patrick P. Kueter, PE                 
 
 
Title: __Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title: Client Director                              
 
 
Date:  Date:   July 10, 2018  
 
 
 

-81-

Item E.2.m. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number EN-289-3167 
   

  
 

Page 1 of 3 

Exhibit A – Scope of Services 

 
Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number EN-289-3167 

 

 
The CONSULTANT shall consult on a regular basis with the City to clarify and define the City’s 
requirements for the Project and review available data.  The City agrees to furnish to the Consultant full 
information with respect to the City’s requirements, including any special or extraordinary considerations 
for the Project or special services needed, and also to make available pertinent existing data.  The project 
is generally described as follows: 
 
Perform a traffic impact study (TIS) peer review of the proposed Henry Property Development located in 
the northwest corner of Hwy 20 and Hwy 58 interchange and south of W. Ridgeway Avenue 
development. 
 
This scope of services is based on the following project assumptions: 
 

 The developer will complete and provide electronic copies of the traffic impact study based on the 
direction from the City. 

 Development of independent traffic models will not be required to complete peer review. 

 Intersection geometry will be reviewed for general layout requirements and order of magnitude 
impacts.  No detailed design will be included. 

 Estimated effort is for review of the initial traffic impact study.  If the City desires additional review 
of updated traffic impact study, the CONSULTANT will submit estimated effort and the City will 
provide written notice to proceed prior to commencing. 

 
The scope of services to be performed by the Consultant shall be completed in accordance with generally 
accepted standards of practice and shall include the services to complete the following tasks: 
 

TASK A - Basic Services of the Engineer: 
 
1.0 TRAFFIC IMPACT PEER REVIEW 

It is anticipated the following information will be contained in the proposed TIS by the developer.  The 
CONSULTANT will review the information and make recommendation of the reasonability of the 
assumptions and analysis results: 
 

 Traffic Data Collection 
 Traffic Impact Study 

 Study Description Area 

 Proposed Land Use 

 Forecast year 

 Analysis Period 

 Data Collection 

 ITE Trip Generation 

 Trip Distribution and Assignment 

 Capacity Analysis 

 Intersection Analysis 

 Proposed Geometrics 

 Right-of-Way Access 

 Crash and Traffic Safety Analysis 

 Design and Mitigation 

 Conclusions 

 Recommendations 

-82-

Item E.2.m. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number EN-289-3167 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 
The CONSULTANT’s review of Traffic Impact Study will be documented in a memorandum and 
distributed to the City for comment.  The CONSULTANT will schedule a conference call to explain the 
findings and answer any questions the City will have.  It is assumed that no public meetings or 
presentation to council will be required. 
 
  

ADDITIONAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED IN THIS AGREEMENT 
Additional Services not included as part of the Scope.  If authorized under a supplemental agreement, the 
CONSULTANT shall furnish or obtain from others the following services: 

1. Public Involvement 
2. Functional Design Services 
3. Preliminary Design Services 
4. Final Design Services 
5. Estimating Services 
6. Construction Period Services 

 
 

PROJECT DELIVERABLES 
The scope of services shall be considered complete upon completion and delivery of the following items 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer: 

 Three (3) copies of the Traffic Impact Study Peer Review Memorandum.  

-83-

Item E.2.m. 



Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project Number EN-289-3167 

 

 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit A - Schedule 

 
Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number EN-289-3167 

 

 
The CONSULTANT shall complete the following phases of the Project in accordance with the schedule 
shown, assuming notice to proceed is issued by the City on or before July 17, 2019. 
 

Consultant Contract Approval    July 16, 2018  

Developers TIS Submittal   July 23, 2018 

TIS Peer Review    2 weeks from submittal of TIS 

 

If notice to proceed is given at a later date, time of completion shall be extended accordingly. 

 

-84-

Item E.2.m. 



    

Exhibit B 
 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Peer Review 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: EN-289-3167  
 

  Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 

-85-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 
 

-86-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 

-87-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
  

-88-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

-89-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

-90-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

-91-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 

$1,000,000 

-92-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

  

-93-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 

-94-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 

-95-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 

    

Exhibit C 
 

Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number EN-289-3167  
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 

-96-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 

 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 

-97-

Item E.2.m. 



 

Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC  Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review 
Project No. 18C003.00  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. EN-289-3167 

 

 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

-98-

Item E.2.m. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Clapsaddle –Garber Associates   
  Center Street Recreational Trail 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
  City Project No. RT-000-3107 
 
 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates. for the 
Center Street Recreational Trail Project. This supplemental agreement continues with 
additional engineering services for redesigning the trail and alignment, associated traffic 
signal modifications, and construction staking.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates Inc. for design related services for the Center Street 
Recreational Trail on November 21, 2016. Funding for the proposed redesign work will 
be provided by GO Bonds in the amount of $15,600. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates Inc. for the 
Center Street Recreational Trail Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
  

-99-

Item E.2.n. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Center Street Improvements Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number RT-000-3107  
 

 
 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (Consultant), of Marshalltown, Iowa, dated November 21, 2016 for 
Center Street Improvements Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to increase the original not 
to exceed amounts of the Professional Services Agreement outlined above,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as 
follows:  
 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

A. Re-Design of trail alignment due to CFU electing not to relocate power poles from Cottage Row 
Rd. to Longview Street. Estimated additional design time beyond original estimate is 8 hours, 
not including expenses. 

 
B. Design of traffic signal modification at Green Avenue. Estimated additional design time beyond 

original estimate is 55 hours, not including expenses. 
 
C. Staking proposed right of way points as requested by the city.  Estimated additional staking 

time beyond original estimate is 8 hours, not including expenses. 

 
D. Construction Staking, which includes the following: 
 

a. Providing a grading model and project control to the contractor (Traditional grading 
stakes not included). 

b. Provide offset stakes for the 10 foot trail and ADA turning squares (Offset on West side 
of trail only) 

c. Provide offset stakes for proposed storm intakes and subdrain cleanouts. 
d. Provide Locations for Pedestrian Poles noted on sheet N.4 
e. Water main and other utility relocation staking is not included. 

-101-

Item E.2.n. 



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates  Center Street Improvements Project 
Project No. 1656  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
   

 

 
 

E. All other services listed in the Scope of Service shall be provided as originally presented in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated November 21, 2016. 

 
 

 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.   
 

A. Total compensation for re-design of trail alignment is an increase in the not to exceed fee of -
Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00). 

 
B. Total compensation for the traffic signal modification is an increase in the not to exceed fee of 

Four Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($4,500.00). 
 
C. Total compensation for staking proposed right of way is an increase in the not to exceed fee 

of Seven Hundred Dollars ($700.00). 
 
D. Total Compensation for Construction Staking is an additional fixed fee of Ten Thousand 

Dollars ($10,000.00). 
 

 
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated November 21, 2016.  
 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:                  
 
 

Title:  Title:                               
 
 

Date:  Date: 7/2/2018  

Matt D. Garber 

President 

 

-102-

Item E.2.n. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
 

 DATE: July 11, 2018 

SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment Number One to the Project Subaward Agreement for 
the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program 

 
 
On August 7, 2017 City Council approved a grant agreement between Iowa Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management and the City of Cedar Falls for the Cedar Falls 
Property Acquisition and Demolition Project. The funding that was approved as part of the 
agreement allowed the City to acquire 13 properties. The original completion date of the 
project was June 30, 2018. However, after the acquisitions were completed and the 
structures were removed from the properties, it was realized that the project costs were 
coming in less than what was budgeted. Due to this cost under-run, there would appear to be 
funds available to activate the one remaining property on the City’s alternate property list 
(two other properties on the alternate list declined to participate). Staff checked with Iowa 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management, who indicated that the activity completion 
timeframe could be extended in order to acquire this additional property.   
 
Attached is Amendment Number One to the Project Subaward Agreement between Iowa 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management and the City of Cedar Falls. The activity 
completion timeframe has been extended from June 30, 2018 to January 31, 2019. This will 
give the City the time needed to acquire the property, and complete the necessary asbestos 
testing/abatement procedures, along with the removal of the structures from the property. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving Amendment Number One to the Project Subaward Agreement between 
Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency Management and the City of Cedar Falls. If you 
have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department.  
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-103-

Item E.2.o. 



 



-105-

Item E.2.o. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
 

 DATE: July 11, 2018 

SUBJECT: Approval of Property Purchase Offer for the Northern Cedar Falls Flood 
Buyout Program, Project No. FL-000-2017 

 
 
On August 7, 2017 City Council approved a grant agreement between Iowa Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management and the City of Cedar Falls for the Cedar Falls 
Property Acquisition and Demolition Project. The funding that was approved as part of the 
agreement allowed the City to acquire 13 properties. After the acquisitions were completed 
and the structures removed from the properties, it was realized that the project costs were 
coming in less than what was budgeted. Due to this cost under-run, there would appear to be 
funds available to activate the one remaining property on the City’s alternate property list 
(two other properties on the alternate list declined to participate).  Staff recently sent a 
purchase offer to the owners of the property, and we have now received the signed purchase 
offer back.  
 
The property that has submitted their purchase offer is as follows: 
 

1. 2703 Timothy Street – Owners Craig and Kathleen Olmstead ($120,000) 
 

The total purchase offer listed above is the appraised value as approved by FEMA in the 
City’s grant application. 
 
Once the City approves the Purchase Offer, staff will begin the closing process on the 
property. Once the City takes over possession of the property, the necessary steps will be 
taken to remove the structures from the property. Completion of this buyout and the overall 
flood buyout program would be January 31, 2019. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving the Purchase Offer for the property indicated above.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Community Development Department.  
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-107-

Item E.2.p. 



 



-109-

Item E.2.p. 



-110-

Item E.2.p. 



-111-

Item E.2.p. 



-112-

Item E.2.p. 



-113-

Item E.2.p. 



-114-

Item E.2.p. 



-115-

Item E.2.p. 



 



�����������	
��	������������	�������������������
���������������������������
������� ��!�"#$��%�&�'�$#()�*$)+"���
�,'� $#()�*$)+"#��   -.���������-.�/� ���	������0123343567689::;34<=6>?@A4B?C6D4A4C493�	'E FGHGIJKLMENJOGIEPJQMRESTEUIGVHEJHWEXYZOEXG[H\YLE� 
�	�'E ]IYRÊM_QJHH̀ESLJHHMIE]E� ����'E P[LOEab̀EcbadE���ef���'E gMHZJLEZGEhYHiLMEjJQYLOEkVHMIEXGHlMIRYGHE]H\MHZYlMESIGiIJQmEaaccEXLJOEhZIMMZEn_MEgMHZJLEZGEhYHiLMEjJQYLOEkVHMIEXGHlMIRYGHE]H\MHZYlMESIGiIJQEVJREJWGoZMWEKOEXYZOEXG[H\YLEGHEpM\MQKMIEcàEcbaqTEEn_MEoIGiIJQEGrrMIREJEjGIiYlJKLMÊGJHEGrE[oEZGEsab̀bbbErGIEMtZMIYGIEYQoIGlMQMHZREZGEJEIMRYWMHZYJLEIMHZJLEoIGoMIZOEKMYHiEo[I\_JRMWEJHWE\GHlMIZMWEZGEJERYHiLMErJQYLOEGVHMIEG\\[oYMWEIMRYWMH\MTEEn_MEiGJLEYREZGEYQoIGlMEJHWEoGRYZYlMLOEYQoJ\ZEHMYi_KGI_GGWE\_JIJ\ZMIEJHWEMH\G[IJiMEoIYlJZMEYQoIGlMQMHZREZGEIMHZJLEoIGoMIZYMRE\GHlMIZYHiEZGEGVHMIEG\\[oYMWTEn_ME\GH\MoZEGrEZ_MEgMHZJLEZGEhYHiLMEjJQYLOEkVHMIEXGHlMIRYGHE]H\MHZYlMESIGiIJQEVJREWMlMLGoMWEYHYZYJLLOEZ_IG[i_EZ_MEXYZOEMRZJKLYR_MWEgMHZJLEnJRuEjGI\MTEaaccEXLJOEhZIMMZEVJREo[I\_JRMWEKOEvYWJHEUIG\uEJHWEvLYRGHEPJOHMREGHEP[HMEaẁEcbadTEn_MEGVHMIE_JRER[KQYZZMWEJHEJooLY\JZYGH̀EJZZJ\_MẀEZGEKME\GHRYWMIMWErGIEZ_MEgMHZJLEZGEhYHiLMEjJQYLOEkVHMIEXGHlMIRYGHE]H\MHZYlMESIGiIJQTEn_MEoIGoMIZOEQMMZREZ_MEIMx[YIMQMHZRErGIEZ_MEoIGiIJQmE_JREKMMHEJEIMHZJLErGIEJZELMJRZEZ_MEoJRZEZ_IMMEOMJIREyRYH\MEjMKI[JIOEcbbqz̀EYRELG\JZMWEYHEZ_MEg{cE|GHYHiEWYRZIY\Z̀ErJLLREVYZ_YHEZ_MEoIGiIJQ}REiMGiIJo_Y\JLEKG[HWJIYMR̀EJHWEYREYHEJEKLG\uEVYZ_ELMRREZ_JHE~q�EIMHZJLRTEvWWYZYGHJLLÒEZ_MEoIGoMIZOEoJRRMWEZ_MEIMx[YIMWEQJ�GIERORZMQREMlJL[JZYGHE\GHW[\ZMWEKOEZ_MEXMWJIEjJLLREU[YLWYHiEpYlYRYGHEGHEP[LOE�Z_̀EcbadTEvYWJHEUIG\uEJHWEvLYRGHEPJOHMREJIMEoIGoGRYHiEZGE[oiIJWMEJLLEZ_MEVYHWGVREJHWERZGIQEWGGIREJZEaaccEXLJOEhZIMMZTEUJRMWEGHEZ_MER[KQYZZMWEKYWEKOE�MLLOEXGHRZI[\ZYGHEhMIlY\MREZ_MEJ\Z[JLE\GRZEGrEZ_MEYQoIGlMQMHZRELYRZMWEYREsa~̀wadTbbTEEn_MEXGQQ[HYZOEpMlMLGoQMHZEpMoJIZQMHZEIM\GQQMHWREJWGoZYHiEJEIMRGL[ZYGHEJooIGlYHiEZ_YREoIGoMIZOErGIEJErGIiYlJKLMELGJHEGrE[oEZGEsab̀bbbTbbEVYZ_EZ_MEoLJ\MQMHZEGrEJELYMHEGHEZ_MEoIGoMIZOErGIEV_Y\_Ecb�EVYLLEKMErGIiYlMHEMJ\_EOMJIErGIErYlMEOMJIREVYZ_EoIGIJZMWEoJOKJ\uEYrERGLWEoIYGIEZGEZ_MEMHWEGrErYlMEOMJIRTEFJLrEGrEZ_MErGIiYlJKLMELGJHEVYLLEKMEoJYWE[oGHEXYZOEXG[H\YLEJooIGlJLEVYZ_EZ_MEKJLJH\MEoJYWE[oGHE\GQoLMZYGHEGrEZ_MEYQoIGlMQMHZR̀EYHRoM\ZYGHREKOEZ_MEXYZOEGrEZ_MEYQoIGlMQMHZR̀EJHWElMIYrY\JZYGHEGrEZ_MEJ\Z[JLE\GRZREGrEZ_MEYQoIGlMQMHZRTEE]rEOG[E_JlMEJHOEx[MRZYGHR̀EoLMJRME\GHZJ\ZEZ_MEXGQQ[HYZOEpMlMLGoQMHZEpMoJIZQMHZTE�\mEEhZMo_JHYMEh_MMZ|̀EXGQQ[HYZOEpMlMLGoQMHZEpYIM\ZGIEEEEEEEE�JIMHEFGVJIẀESLJHHYHiE�EXGQQ[HYZOEhMIlY\MRENJHJiMIE
-117-

Item E.2.q. 



n_YREYHRZI[QMHZEVJREWIJrZMWEKOmEE]IYRÊM_QJHH̀EXGQQ[HYZOEpMlMLGoQMHZEpMoJIZQMHZ̀EXYZOEGrEXMWJIEjJLLR̀EccbEXLJOEhZIMMZ̀EXMWJIEjJLLR̀E]vEEqb�a�̀ES_GHMmEE�a�{c�d{qadqTE�����	�����������������	���	����	��v\\G[HZE�GTE aba{ccwq{ww{d�T~�E vQG[HZEEsEab̀bbbTbbEpJZMmEEg�mESIGoMIZOELG\JZMWEJZmEaaccEXLJOEhZIMMZEEJHWELMiJLLOEWMR\IYKMWEJR gESEhS��ghEvpp]n]k�ÊknE~EÛ�Eqy_MIMYHJrZMIEZ_ME�gM_JKYLYZJZMWESIGoMIZO�zTE�F�g�vh̀EZ_MEXYZOEGrEXMWJIEjJLLR̀E]GVJ̀E_JREJWlJH\MWE\MIZJYHER[QREZGEZ_MErGLLGVYHiEGVHMIEGIEGVHMIRmEEvYWJHEUIG\uEJHWEvLYRGHEPJOHMREy_MIMYHJrZMIEIMrMIIMWEZGEJRE�kVHMI�z̀E[HWMIEZ_MEJEgMHZJLEZGEkVHMIEXGHlMIRYGHESIGiIJQ̀EV_Y\_ESIGiIJQEIMx[YIMREZ_JZEJHEMH\[QKIJH\MEKMEoLJ\MWE[oGHEZ_MEJKGlM{WMR\IYKMWESIGoMIZÒE[oGHEZ_MEZMIQREJHWE\GHWYZYGHRERMZErGIZ_EKMLGVTEE]nE]hEv�g��pEKOEZ_MEkVHMIEJRErGLLGVRmEjkgE�v̂��Eg�X�]��p̀EZ_ME[HWMIRYiHMWEkVHMÌE�GYHZLOEJHWERMlMIJLLOEoIGQYRMREZGEoJOEZGEZ_MEGIWMIEGrEZ_MEXYZOEGrEXMWJIEjJLLR̀E]GVJ̀EGIEYZRER[\\MRRGIREGIEJRRYiHREy_MIMYHJrZMIEZ_ME�XYZO�z̀EZ_MER[QEGrEZMHEZ_G[RJHWEJHWEbb�abbEpGLLJIREysab̀bbbTbbzEy_MIMYHJrZMIEZ_ME�̂GJH�z̀EJRErGLLGVRmEvTE ]rEZ_MESIGoMIZOEYRERGLWEGIEZIJHRrMIIMWEVYZ_YHEZVMLlMEyaczEQGHZ_REGrEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZ̀EGHME_[HWIMWEyabbzEoMI\MHZEGrEZ_MÊGJHER_JLLEKM\GQMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZO�EUTE ]rEZ_MEgM_JKYLYZJZMWESIGoMIZOEYRERGLWEGIEZIJHRrMIIMWEJHOEZYQMEKMZVMMHEZ_MEa�Z_EJHWEcwZ_EQGHZ_ErIGQEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZ̀EMYi_ZOEydbzEoMI\MHZEGrEZ_MÊGJHER_JLLEKM\GQMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZO�EXTE ]rEZ_MEgM_JKYLYZJZMWESIGoMIZOEYRERGLWEGIEZIJHRrMIIMWEJHOEZYQMEKMZVMMHEZ_MEcqZ_EJHWE��Z_EQGHZ_ErIGQEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZ̀ERYtZOEy�bzEoMI\MHZEGrEZ_MÊGJHER_JLLEKM\GQMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZOmEpTE ]rEZ_MEgM_JKYLYZJZMWESIGoMIZOEYRERGLWEGIEZIJHRrMIIMWEJHOEZYQMEKMZVMMHEZ_ME�~Z_EJHWEwdZ_EQGHZ_ErIGQEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZ̀ErGIZOEywbzEoMI\MHZEGrEZ_MÊGJHER_JLLEKM\GQMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZOmE�TE ]rEZ_MEgM_JKYLYZJZMWESIGoMIZOEYRERGLWEGIEZIJHRrMIIMWEJHOEZYQMEKMZVMMHEZ_MEw�Z_EJHWE�bZ_EQGHZ_ErIGQEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZ̀EZVMHZOEycbzEoMI\MHZEGrEZ_MÊGJHER_JLLEKM\GQMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZOmE
-118-

Item E.2.q. 



jTE vrZMIEZ_MERYtZYMZ_Ey�bzEQGHZ_ErIGQEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREYHRZI[QMHZ̀EZ_MEMHZYIMEJQG[HZEGrEZ_MÊGJHEYRErGIiYlMHEJHWEHGEQGHMOEVYLLEKMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZO�E�TE kVHMIER_JLLEGVHEJHWEG\\[oOEZ_MESIGoMIZOEJREZ_MEkVHMI}REoIYH\YoJLEIMRYWMH\MEJZEJLLEZYQMREW[IYHiEZ_MERYtZOEy�bzEQGHZ_EoMIYGWEWMR\IYKMWE_MIMYHTE]HEZ_MEMlMHZEZ_MEkVHMIErJYLREZGEG\\[oOEZ_MEgM_JKYLYZJZMWESIGoMIZOEJREZ_MEkVHMI}REoIYH\YoJLEIMRYWMH\MErGIEJHOEoMIYGWEGrEZVGEyczE\GHRM\[ZYlMEQGHZ_R̀ErGIEJHOEIMJRGH̀EGIERMLLR̀EZIJHRrMIR̀EIMHZR̀EJKJHWGHR̀ElJ\JZMREGIEGZ_MIVYRMEYHEJHOEQJHHMIErJYLREZGEG\\[oOEZ_MESIGoMIZÒEV_MZ_MIElGL[HZJIYLOEGIEYHlGL[HZJIYLÒEoIYGIEZGEZ_MEZMIQYHJZYGHEGrEZ_MERYtZOEy�bzEQGHZ_EoMIYGWEWMR\IYKMWE_MIMYH̀EkVHMIER_JLLEYQQMWYJZMLOEHGZYrOEZ_MEXYZOEZ_MIMGrTE]rEW[IYHiERJYWERYtZOEy�bzEQGHZ_EoMIYGẀEkVHMIER_JLLElYGLJZMEZ_MErGIMiGYHiEIMx[YIMQMHZR̀EkVHMIER_JLLEYQQMWYJZMLOEoJOEZGEZ_MEXYZOEZ_MEoMI\MHZJiMEGrEZ_ME[HrGIiYlMHEoIYH\YoJLEJQG[HZEGrEZ_MÊGJH̀EKJRMWE[oGHEZ_MErGIMiGYHiER\_MW[LM̀ErGIEZ_MEoMIYGWEKMZVMMHEZ_MEWJZMEGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZEJHWEZ_MEWJZMEkVHMIErJYLREZGEQMMZEZ_MErGIMiGYHiEIMx[YIMQMHZRTEFTE �GZVYZ_RZJHWYHiEZ_MEoIGlYRYGHREGrEoJIJiIJo_E�TEJKGlM̀EYrEZ_MErJYL[IMEGrEkVHMIEZGE\GQoLOEVYZ_EZ_MEIMx[YIMQMHZREGrEoJIJiIJo_E�TEYREW[MEZGEQMWY\JLE\YI\[QRZJH\MREKMOGHWEZ_MEIMJRGHJKLME\GHZIGLEGrEkVHMIEJREWMrYHMWEYHEZ_YREoJIJiIJo_̀EZ_MEMHZYIMEJQG[HZEGrEZ_MÊGJHER_JLLEKMErGIiYlMH̀EJHWEHGEQGHMOEVYLLEKMEW[MEJHWEoJOJKLMEZGEZ_MEXYZOTEjGIEo[IoGRMREGrEZ_YREJiIMMQMHZ̀E�QMWY\JLE\YI\[QRZJH\MREKMOGHWEZ_MEIMJRGHJKLME\GHZIGLEGrEZ_MEkVHMI�ER_JLLEYH\L[WM̀EVYZ_G[ZELYQYZJZYGH̀EZ_MEWMJZ_EGrEZ_MEkVHMÌEJHWEZ_MEIMLG\JZYGHEGrEZ_MEkVHMIEYrEoIMR\IYKMWEKOEJEQMWY\JLEWG\ZGIErGIE_MJLZ_EGIEWYRJKYLYZOEIMJRGHR̀EVYZ_ERJYWEIMLG\JZYGHEKMYHiEZGEJHGZ_MIE\LYQJZM̀EZGEJEH[IRYHiEGIEGZ_MIE\JIMErJ\YLYZÒEGIEZGEJHEJoJIZQMHZEGIEGZ_MIErJ\YLYZÒEYrEWMMQMWEKOEkVHMI}REQMWY\JLEWG\ZGIEJREQGIMER[YZJKLMErGIEZ_ME_MJLZ_EJHWE\JIMEGrEZ_MEkVHMITEvYWJHEUIG\u vLYRGHEPJOHMRk���gE k���gEhnvn�EkjE]k�vE E zEzERRmEXk��n�EkjEÛvX�EFv��EzEn_YREYHRZI[QMHZEVJREJ\uHGVLMWiMWEKMrGIMEQMEGHEZ_ME���EWJOEGrE��������̀Ecbad̀EKOEvYWJHEUIG\uEJHWEvLYRGHEPJOHMRTE �����������������������������������������E�GZJIOES[KLY\EYHEJHWErGIEZ_MEhZJZMEGrE]GVJE
-119-

Item E.2.q. 



-120-

Item E.2.q. 



�������������������  ¡¢£¤¥¡¦§̈©©§¡¢©ª¤̈¡«¤££¬¡®̄°¤¡±²³�́¡¡��������µ�¶���·�����¹̧©¡º̈ »̄©¼§¡°½££¡½¾¼£¿ª©¡§¹©¡À̄££̄°½¾Á¡©Â§©̈½̄̈ ¡¿ºª¤§©¬Ã¡¡̈©º£¤¼©Ä©¾§¡¤¾ª¡½¾¬§¤££¤§½̄¾¡̄À¡¤ºº̈ Â̄½Ä¤§©£¥¡ Å¡°½¾ª̄°¬¡̈©º£¤¼©Ä©¾§¡¤¾ª¡½¾¬§¤££¤§½̄¾¡̄À¡ ¡¬§̄ Ä̈¬¡ª̄¯̈¬¡̈©º£¤¼©Ä©¾§¡¤¾ª¡½¾¬§¤££¤§½̄¾¡̄À¡¬©¤Ä£©¬¬¡Á¿§§©̈¬¡ª̄°¾¬º̄¿§¬¡¤¾ª¡Á¿§§©̈¡Á¿¤̈ª¬Æ¡¡̧¹©¡º̈ »̄©¼§¡°½££¡Ç©¡¼̄¾§̈¤¼§©ª¡§¹̈ ¿̄Á¹¡È©££¥¡¢̄¾¬§̈¿¼§½̄¾¡¦©̈É½¼©¬Æ¡¡Ê¾ª©̈¬©¾¡Ë²²¡¦©̈½©¬¡°½¾ª̄°¬¡¹¤É©¡Ç©©¾¡¬©£©¼§©ª¡À̄ ¡̈§¹©¡̈©º£¤¼©Ä©¾§¡°½¾ª̄°¬Ì¡Ê¾ª©̈¬©¾¡Ë²²²¡¦©̈½©¬¡«¿££É½©°¡°½§¹¡Í¿¤£¡Î¤¾©¡®¾¬¿£¤§½¾Á¡Ï£¤¬¬¡¹¤É©¡Ç©©¾¡¬©£©¼§©ª¡À̄ ¡̈§¹©¡̈©º£¤¼©Ä©¾§¡¬§̄ Ä̈¡ª̄¯̈¬Æ¡¡¡Ð�����·���Ñ�ÒÓ·����¹̧©¡¤¾§½¼½º¤§©ª¡½Äº¤¼§¡̄¾¡§¹©¡º̈ º̄̄¬©ª¡º̈ »̄©¼§¡Ç©¾©À½§¬¡̄¿̈¡¼̄ÄÄ¿¾½§¥¡¡̄¾¡Ä¤¾¥¡£©É©£¬Æ¡¡«̈ Ǟ¡¤¡º©̈¬̄¾¤£¡¾©½Á¹Ç̄ ¹̈̄ ª̄¡̄̈¡¼½§¥Ô°½ª©¡£©É©£¡§¹©¡½Äº¤¼§¬¡¤̈©¡¬¿Ç¬§¤¾§½¤£Æ¡¡¡Õ¾¡¤¡º©̈¬̄¾¤£¡£©É©£¡§¹©¡º̈ »̄©¼§¡°½££¡Ç©¡§¹©¡À½̈¬§¡̄À¡Ä¤¾¥¡°©¡¹¤É©¡º£¤¾¾©ª¡À̄ ¡̈̄¿̈¡¾©°¡¹̄Ä©¡¤¾ª¡°½££¡¹©£º¡¿¬¡½ÄÄ©ª½¤§©£¥¡Ç©Á½¾¡§̄¡Ç¿½£ª¡©Ö¿½§¥¡½¾¡̄¿̈¡¹̄Ä©Æ¡¡Ê¬¡§°̄ ¡¥̄¿¾Á¡º̈ À̄©¬¬½̄¾¤£¬¡°©¡¿¾ª©̈¬§¤¾ª¡¹̄°¡ª½ÀÀ½¼¿£§¡½§¡¼¤¾¡Ç©¡§̄¡¬¤É©¡¿º¡À̄ ¡̈¹̄Ä©¡½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¬Æ¡¡Ê£¬̄¡§¹©¡½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¬¡°½££¡¤£¬̄¡¤ªª̈©¬¬¡¬¤À©§¥¡¼̄¾¼©̈¾¬¡¤¬¡§¹©¡¼¿̈ ©̈¾§¡°½¾ª̄°¬¡¹¤É©¡°©¤×¡º¿££©¥¡¤¾ª¡£̄¼×½¾Á¡Ä©¼¹¤¾½¬Ä¬Æ¡¡Ø©¡À©©£¡½§¡½¬¡¤Ç¬̄£¿§©£¥¡¾©¼©¬¬¤̈¥¡§̄¡¹¤É©¡¬¤À©¡°½¾ª̄°¬¡Ç©À̄ ©̈¡½¾É½§½¾Á¡À¤Ä½£¥¡¤¾ª¡À̈½©¾ª¬¡§̄¡̄¿̈¡¹̄Ä©¡°¹½¼¹¡½¾¼£¿ª©¬¡¥̄¿¾Á¡¼¹½£ª̈©¾Æ¡¡̧¹©¡Á̈¤¾§¡°̄ ¿£ª¡¤££̄°¡¿¬¡§̄¡§¤¼×£©¡§¹½¬¡£¤̈Á©¡¼̄¾¼©̈¾¡°½§¹½¾¡¤¡À©°¡Ä ¾̄§¹¬¡̄À¡Ä É̄½¾Á¡½¾Æ¡¡¡Õ¾¡¤¡¾©½Á¹Ç̄ ¹̈̄ ª̄¡£©É©£¡§¹©¬©¡½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¬¡Ä¤×©¡§¹©¡¼̄ÄÄ¿¾½§¥¡Ä¯̈©¡¤©¬§¹©§½¼¤££¥¡º£©¤¬½¾Á¡¤££¡°¹½£©¡¹©£º½¾Á¡§̄¡º̈©¬©̈É©¡§¹©¡¼¹¤̈¤¼§©̈¡̄À¡̄¿̈¡̄£ª©̈¡¾©½Á¹Ç̄ ¹̈̄ ª̄Æ¡¡¢£¤¥¡¦§̈©©§¡¤¼§¬¡¤¬¡¤¡¼©¾§̈¤£¡̈̄¤ª¡½¾¡̄¿̈¡¼½§¥Ì¡À̈̄ Ä¡¹̄¬§½¾Á¡º¤̈§¡̄À¡§¹©¡¦§¿̈Á½¬¡«¤££¬¡º¤̈¤ª©¡̈̄¿§©¡§̄¡§¹©¡ª©¬½Á¾¤§©ª¡Ç½×©¡£¤¾©¡§¹¤§¡§¤×©¬¡¥̄¿¡§̄¡Ä¤¾¥¡̄À¡̄¿̈¡§̈¤½£¬¡¤£̄¾Á¡§¹©¡̈½É©̈¡¢£¤¥¡¦§̈©©§¡¬¹̄¿£ª¡Ç©¡©¾»̄¥¤Ç£©¡À̄ ¡̈Ç̄§¹¡º©ª©¬§̈½¤¾¬¡¤¾ª¡¼¥¼£½¬§¬¡¤£½×©Æ¡¡̧ ¡̄¤ªª¡À̄ ¡̈¼¿̈ ©̈¾§¡¹̄Ä©̄°¾©̈¬¡½¾¡§¹©¡¾©½Á¹Ç̄ ¹̈̄ ª̄¡©̈É©̈¬½¾Á¡§¹©¡§̈©¾ª¡À̈̄ Ä¡̈©¾§¤£¡º̈ º̄©̈§½©¬¡§̄°¤̈ª¡¬½¾Á£©¡À¤Ä½£¥¡ª°©££½¾Á¬¡°½££¡¹©£º¡º̈©¬©̈É©¡º̈ º̄©̈§¥¡É¤£¿©¬¡½¾¡̄¿̈¡¾©½Á¹Ç̄ ¹̈̄ ª̄Æ¡¡¡Õ¾¡¤¡¼½§¥Ô°½ª©¡£©É©£¡§¹©¡º̈ »̄©¼§¡¤££̄°¬¡¿¬¡§̄¡¿¬©¡¤¡£̄¼¤£¡Ç¿¬½¾©¬¬¡§̄¡Ä¤×©¡§¹©¬©¡½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¬Æ¡®À¡½§¡°©̈©¾Ù§¡À̄ ¡̈§¹©¡º̈ Á̄̈¤Ä¡°©Ùª¡£½×©£¥¡Ç¿¥¡§¹©¡¬¿ºº£½©¬¡¤§¡¤¡£¤̈Á©¡¹̄Ä©Ô½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¡¼¹¤½¾¡¬§̄ ©̈¡¤¾ª¡ª̄¡§¹©¡½¾¬§¤££¤§½̄¾¡̄¿̈¬©£É©¬Æ¡¡Ú̄ °©É©̈¡§¹©¡Á̈¤¾§¡°̄ ¿£ª¡¤££̄°¡¿¬¡§̄¡¬¿ºº̄ §̈¡Ç¿¬½¾©¬¬©¬¡¤¾ª¡×©©º¡§¹©¡Ä ¾̄©¥¡½¾¡̄¿̈¡¼̄ÄÄ¿¾½§¥Æ¡¡«½¾¤££¥¡Ç¥¡½¾¼̈©¤¬½¾Á¡§¹©¡¬¿̈¨̄¿¾ª½¾Á¡̈©¬½ª©¾§½¤£¡º̈ º̄©̈§¥¡É¤£¿©¬¡½¾¡§¹©¡ª©¬½Á¾¤§©ª¡º̈ »̄©¼§¡¤̈©¤¡§¹©¡¾©¤̈Ç¥¡ª̄°¾§̄°¾¡Ç¿¬½¾©¬¬©¬¡¤¾ª¡¼̄ÄÄ©̈¼½¤£¡º̈ º̄©̈§¥¡̄°¾©̈¬¡¬¹̄¿£ª¡¤£¬̄¡¬©©¡¤¾¡½¾¼̈©¤¬©¡½¾¡º̈ º̄©̈§¥¡É¤£¿©Æ¡¡¡Ê¬¡§¹©¡¢½§¥¡̄À¡¢©ª¤̈¡«¤££¬¡¼̄¾§½¾¿©¬¡§̄¡Á̈ °̄¡¬̄¿§¹°¤̈ª¡°©¡À©©£¡£½×©¡¾̄°¡½¬¡§¹©¡̈½Á¹§¡§½Ä©¡§̄¡Ä¤×©¡§¹©¬©¡½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¬Æ¡¡̧¹½¬¡̄£ª©̈¡º¤̈§¡̄À¡§̄°¾¡½¾¡§̈¿£¥¡¤¡¬º©¼½¤£¡º£¤¼©¡¤¾ª¡¹̄º©¡§¹¤§¡Ä¤×½¾Á¡§¹©¬©¡½Äº̈ É̄©Ä©¾§¬¡°½££¡×©©º¡§¹½¬¡¤̈©¤¡¤ºº©¤£½¾Á¡À̄ ¡̈À¿§¿̈©¡Á©¾©̈¤§½̄¾¬¡̄À¡¢©ª¤̈¡«¤££¬¡¼½§½Û©¾¬Æ¡¡
-121-

Item E.2.q. 



ÜÝÞÜÞßàáßâãäåææçèæÞé èàæçé ÜÝÞÜÞßàáêëÜÝÞìçíæé àææçîéáÞíàæåÞîéÜïÞîçé ðàñ çòóôõö÷øùúûüùýþ��ûùü�ý���þùþ���úýû�þø������ùý���	��
�ý�ûüûù�ùþþ�ý�ùú���ùû��������ù�ù�øù�������û���ûþ����������ûü��þ��ûü���ü��ýþ���ù�þù���ù�ùý���û�ú����������ûþ�ûü����úþ��ûþ��Ü��� ô!"ê#$êà%&"�!"%ê'((êß"�õ"!êè)�*ö"êï�%+êÜ�"ò,õ%õ! "&ê-õ%&)-!ê.��ê/�#0(12�$(#�å%!3ôööê#$êà%&"�!"%ê'((êß"�õ"!êè)�*ö"êï�%+êÜ�"ò,õ%õ! "&ê-õ%&)-!ê.��/#0$((1�Ü��� ô!"ê1êà%&"�!"%ê'((êß"�õ"!êíô!"ó"%3ê-õ%&)-!ê.��ê/�0$44�5$'�å%!3ôööê1êà%&"�!"%ê'((êß"�õ"!êíô!"ó"%3ê-õ%&)-!.��/1(($�Ü��� ô!"ê#êà%&"�!"%ê!3)�óê&))�!ê.��/$5��$$6�å%!3ôööê#êà%&"�!"%!3)�óê&))�!.��/'((ðÞÝæïçßâäÞðéàáæçÝîàæçßé789:;<<=;>>?:?@8;<=AB::CD9=;8>=>@E8=9F@B:9=;>>=GHIJJKJJÞ3 "�êà&&õ3õ)%!éL;MNC8::@OCN;>C;9P@<<@E9QRSSTUVWXYUZX[W\]̂_XỲab?9c@8:D;c:N;MOCd@?>?P8@:;ccCF:C>?8eJ>;M9KfB;<?P?c;:?@89;8>Cgc<B9?@89Qh;<C9a;g78c<B>C>ij@L;MNC8:;8>LCDP@DN;8cCk@8>978c<B>C>ij@lCcmnCF<;cCNC8:78c<B>C>ioC:789B<;:?@8:@OCnCN@dC>;8>nCF<;cC>@8;a?NC;8>p;:CD?;<9k;9?9qù������ûþ�ýú����û�rùýs��ùþÝ"!t"�3,�ööuêß�*óõ33"&êãuéßïàvîêwçááxêååyyyyyy îôó"zèô3"éyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyà��"t3"&êãuéyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy{|}}~=��jhan��a7�j=h|n�7�|h��������������������������������������o?8>@E=nCF<;cCNC8: �?>;81$1'êÜô%3 "�êá%�í"&ô�êðôöö!0êåàê$(6�1Ü�ê1�5ò#22ò51$$ð�ê1�5ò#22ò51$$�?>;8=kD@cm��HH=�<;M=h:DCC:�=�C>;D=�;<<9�=7�=IJ��e �������]�]Ŷ]]Y� XV¡¢Y£¤XV¥¦VY£¥]£U¢Y£§_̈ ̂]]Y©X\\¢¥¡ªªªª̀ «̀R¬®R̄ S̀Se�°iH°JiI�H± ;?>;8KOD@cmHJJ°²AN;?<Kc@N
-122-

Item E.2.q. 



-123-

Item E.2.q. 



-124-

Item E.2.q. 



-125-

Item E.2.q. 



-126-

Item E.2.q. 



-127-

Item E.2.q. 



-128-

Item E.2.q. 



-129-

Item E.2.q. 



-130-

Item E.2.q. 



³́µ¶·̧¹¶º¹»¼µ½̧´ ¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆÇÈÉ ÊÅÇËÈÉÌÁÅÇÄÁÇÊÈÇÍÁËÈÄÎÉÅÏÉ¿À À¿ÐÁÇÏÄ¿ÄÎÅÌÁÍÁËÈÄ ÇÈÁÏÑÒÅÉÑÅÅÓÄÁÀÎ¿ÊÍÔÔÕÖ×ØÙÚÖÛÜÝÞÞÜÖ ×ÞßÙÝÖàÙØØáâÖãäåÙÖæÕçèé êëìÖíéèîïÖÔðéñòçÕÕÖ àÙóìÖíéèîïÖÔçòñæèÔç åååôõÞßÙÝöÙØØáôõä÷ øùúûüùúýûþ��ùúü��þù�ûùúû�ùûù���þ�û��û����þ���þù��ûû ��ý�	ýû�ù�����û�
ýû�ý��úûø���	û�ùüü�þ��ûû �ý�ý�ù�üý��û�ý��ú�üý���ÎÉÅÏÉ¿ÀÄÈÂÁÏÁÒÁÂÁÍÃÄ ÉÈ��ÁÉÈÀÈÇÍÌ ����û���û��û�ù�ý�û�úù�ýú�þý	û�þ�
þ�û�
ýû �ý	þ����ý�û�úý�ûù�û�
ýû�ù���ú�ûü��û�
��û 
��ýû�ýý�ûúý����	û�ùúû��û�ý�	�û�
úýýû�ý�ú	�û ���ùúû
ù	ý
ù��û	�	�ýü	ûü	�û�ýûþ�û�ùù�ûû �ùú�þ��ûùú�ýú�û�þ��ûþ�	�ý��þù�ûúý�þúý�� �����ùúû
ù	ý
ù��û	�	�ýü	ûþ����ýûý�ý��úþ����û ��ü�þ���û !"��û���û�ý�ýú��ûù�ýú���û �úù�ýú��û���û	�ú��úýû�ù��þ�þù��û�þ��ûû �þ��û�ù�û�úù�þ�ýû���þ��ûþ�û�
ýúýû�úýû
ý���
ûû ùúû	��ý��û�ù��ýú�	û�þ�
û�
ýûü��ùúû	�	�ýü	�ûû #$�ûü��ùúû	�	�ýü	ûúý��þú	û�úýûþ����ý�û�	ûû ��ú�ûù�û�
ýû�úù�ý��û���û�þ��û�ýû%����ý�û��û �
ýû
ùüýù��ýú�û�
ýû�úù�ý��û�ù��û�ýûý�þ�þ��ýû �ùúû�
þ	û�úù�ú�ü�& �����ýûù�û����þ���þù�û�þ��û�ýû	ý�û�ùû�úþùúþ�þ�ýû �úù�ý��	û��ý		û�
ýúýû�úýû�ý		û����þ���þù�	û �
��û���þ����ýû���þ���ûû'ýû�ù��ù�þ��û �úý�ýúý��ý	ûù�û�úù�ý��û���þ��û�þ��û�ýû ý�����ý�û�ùúû	ý( û"�ûû)�ú��úý	û�þ��û�úþùúû�ùû�*+, û-�ûû.úù�ý��	û�þ�
û��ùûùúûüùúýûû þü�úù�ýüý��	û�
��û�úù�þ�ýû�ûû ��ú�ýúû�ýþ�
�ùú
ùù�ûþü���� û��ûû.úù�ý��	ûþ�û��ù��	û�þ�
û�ý		û�
��ûû /,0ûúý����	 ��$ü�úù�ýüý��	ûü	�û�ýûü��ýûù�û�úþ���ýû �úù�ýú��û���û�ùü��ý�ý�û�þ�
þ�û	þ1ûüù��
	ûû ù�û��ù	þ���û�ý���üý��ûü��û�ýûúý�þúý�ûþ�û þü�úù�ýüý��	û
��ýû�ù�û�ýý�û�ùü��ý�ý��û 
��ýû�ù�û	��ú�ý��ûùúû�ùû	þ��þ%����û�úù�úý		û 
�	û�ýý�ûü��ý�û
-131-

Item E.2.q. 



ÓÈÍ¿ÁÂÈÓÄÎÉÅÏÉ¿ÀÄ ÊÅÀÎÅÇÈÇÍÌÄ ��øùú�þ����ýû2ù��û.úù�ú�üû�þ�
û�,0û�ùú�þ�ý�û ý��
û�ý�úû�þ�
û�úùú��ý�û�������ûþ�û	ù��û�þ�
þ�û %�ýû�ý�ú	 ��"û�þý�û�þ��û�ýû����ý�ûù�û�
ýû�úù�ýú�� ��3ùû�úúý��ûþ��ùüýû�þüþ�	ûùúûü���
þ��ûû ���ûúý�þúýüý��	 ���þ��û���	û�ùû�ýû	ý�ûù���û�ùúûý1�ýúþùúû þü�úù�ýüý��	û�
��û�úý��ýû�ù	þ�þ�ýû�þ	��ûû �ýþ�
�ùú
ùù�ûþü����	 ����1þüüû�þ��û���þ��ûù�û4�,�,,,ûû �ýúû�úù�ý�� ��/,0ûù�û�þ��û���þ��û�úù�þ�ý�û���ýúû��ù	þ���û �þ�
û���úù�ý�û����þ���þù�û���û�ù	�ûý	�þü��ýûû �ùúûþü�úù�ýüý��	 ��-�����ýû��þ�û���ýúû�úù�ý��û�ùü��ý�þù��û�þ�
ûû ���û�úù�ý��ûúý�ýþ��	û���û�þ��ûþ�	�ý��þù�Ó56678Ä596:;<7Ä=>5?=Ä 6>7Ä;<;6;@:ÄAB5C7D6Ä@B7@ EFGHFIJKEFGLMNN Ì9OP;6Ä@AA:;D@6;5< Ì6@QQÄB7R;7?ÄS;<D:98;<TÄ;<67B;5BÄÄ @<8Ä7U67B;5BÄ=;67Ä;<=A7D6;5<V Ê59<D;:ÄB7R;7?Ä@<8Ä@AAB5R@: Å?<7BÄD:5=;<TÄ5<ÄB7<6@:ÄA9BD>@=7 WXYÄA@ZP7<6ÄP@87ÄÄ O@=78Ä5<ÄD5=6Ä7=6;P@67 Ê5PA:767Ä@AAB5R78Ä;PAB5R7P7<6ÄAB5C7D6Ä SO@:@<D7Ä5QÄA@ZP7<6Ä897VÏÈÇÈÉ¿ÂÄÎÉÅÏÉ¿ÀÄ Ï�ÁÓÈÂÁÇÈÌ ��"��þ����ýû�ùû��û���û��û�ù�ý�ûúý����û �úù�ýú�þý	û�þ�
þ�û�
ýû�úù�ý��û�úý�û[\]]̂_̀ab ���þ��û	��cû�þ��û�ýûþ��ù��ý�û�úþùúû�ùû��ù	þ��û ���û���û�úù�þ�ýû��ûþ��þ���þù�ûù�ûý�þ�þ�þ�þ�� ��.ù	�d��ù	þ��û.úù�ú�üû�ùûý�	úýû�ù��ýú	þù�û ù�û�úù�ýú��û�ùû	þ���ýd��üþ��ûù��ýú	
þ� ���þ	�úý�þù��ú�û�úù�ú�ü(û�þ��û
�	û�ùû ù��þ���þù�û�ùû���û�ûúý�ý	�Í>7ÄÊ;6ZÄ5QÄÊ78@BÄ¾@::=Ä>@=Ä7=6@O:;=>78Ä @Ä<7?ÄÉ7<6@:Ä65ÄÌ;<T:7Ä¾@P;:ZÄÅ?<7BÄ Ê5<R7B=;5<ÄÁ<D7<6;R7ÄÎB5TB@PÄ?;6>Ä@ÄÄ T5@:Ä5QÄAB5P56;<TÄO@:@<D7Ä?;6>;<ÄÄ D7B6@;<Ä<7;T>O5B>558=e Ì¿ÀÎÂÈÄÈfÍÈÉÁÅÉÄ ÁÀÎÉÅËÈÀÈÇÍÌ ��)þ�þ���û��þ���ûúùù��û�þ��ù�	�ûû ���û���ýú	 ��2���	���þ���û��ý�úþ���û��ý���ûû #�	û��ú�ûù�ûù�
ýúûþü�úù�ýüý��	& ���ýüù�þ��û�úý�	ûù�û�úù�ý�û���þ��g�ú��ý�ûû ���ûúý����þ��û�þ�
û
�ú�û	ú���ý ���ýüù���ûù�û�ý�ýúþùú��ý�û	�ùù�	g�ùú�
ý	 ��h�
ýúûý1�ýúþùúûþü�úù�ýüý��	û���þ��û�ùû�
ýû ù�ýú���û
ùüýû���û�ýþ�
�ùú
ùù�û�
�ú���ýú
-132-

Item E.2.q. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: July 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 
  Riverwise Engineering 
 
Please find attached the Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Riverwise Engineering to 
complete the design of the Cedar River recreational improvement project. The original 
agreement with Riverwise was approved by the City Council on September 5, 2017 
which included 30% preliminary design and agency coordination for the in-river and 
riverbank improvements from the upstream side of the Main Street Bridge to the 
downstream side of the W. 1st Street Bridge. This agreement will move the project from 
preliminary design through agency permitting and final design. A separate supplemental 
agreement will cover any surveys that may be requested during the permitting process 
along with the construction inspection and administration phase of the project. 
 
The general scope of services outlined in this supplemental agreement includes the 
following components: 
 
• Instream Preliminary Design, Floodplain Modeling and Permitting Applications. 

o Completion of a presentation and boards and facilitation of a public open house. 
o Complete preliminary design including plan, profile and section. 
o Cost and quantity estimate. 
o Instream permit applications deliverables to the Iowa DNR Fisheries, Floodplains, and 
Natural Lands in addition to US Army Corps of Engineers 404 and 408 permit applications. 

o Hydrologic and hydraulic analysis to update the existing HEC-RAS Model of Record. 
o Cofferdam design needed for the project. 
o Construction access and staging design. 
o Additional surveying at Low Dam (Clay Hole) with University of Iowa IIHR Hydroscience 
and Engineering department. 

o Wetland delineation study by Stantec Engineering. 
 

• Riverbank Preliminary and Final Design 
o Riverbank preliminary, final, and construction documents. 
o Riverbank permitting cost and quantity estimates. 

 
• Final Design, Permitting Support and Construction Documents 

o Instream final design construction ready documents 

-133-

Item E.2.r. 



The funding for this project is identified as riverbank and river safety/whitewater 
improvements in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY22 
under item number 33 and 34. This contract is $169,729.00. These costs come out of 
the overall dollars available for this project. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of the engineering Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Riverwise Engineering to 
complete the preliminary design, permitting and final design of the whitewater, safety 
and riverbank improvements along the Cedar River from the upstream side of the 
Center Street Bridge to the downstream side of the W. 1st Street Bridge. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me 
at this office. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Director, Community Development 
 Mark Ripplinger, Director, Municipal Operations and Programs 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

-134-

Item E.2.r. 



-135-

Item E.2.r. 



-136-

Item E.2.r. 



-137-

Item E.2.r. 



-138-

Item E.2.r. 



-139-

Item E.2.r. 



-140-

Item E.2.r. 



-141-

Item E.2.r. 



-142-

Item E.2.r. 



-143-

Item E.2.r. 



-144-

Item E.2.r. 



-145-

Item E.2.r. 



-146-

Item E.2.r. 



-147-

Item E.2.r. 



-148-

Item E.2.r. 



-149-

Item E.2.r. 



-150-

Item E.2.r. 



-151-

Item E.2.r. 



-152-

Item E.2.r. 



-153-

Item E.2.r. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 12, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9 
  SW-000-3113 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, August 6th, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, August 14th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to 
Bidders be published by July 20, 2018. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications 
will be ready for distribution to contractors on July 20, 2018 allowing more than two (2) 
weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to property owner. The 
project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess the 
cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been completed, the 
Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk will then send 
notice to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will have 30 days to 
pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner doesn’t pay the bill 
in 30 days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ property taxes and 
spread over 5 years with an interest rate set by City Council.  
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $29,884.18. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-155-

Item E.2.s. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: July 12, 2018  

 SUBJECT: Land Use Map amendment and rezoning request for property located at 1015 & 
1021 W. 22nd Street 

 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Land Use Map Amendment from High Density Residential to Neighborhood 
Commercial/Mixed Use. 
 

Rezone property from R-3, Multiple Unit Residential to C-3, High Density 
Commercial 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

CV Commercial, LLC 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Property located at 1015 and 1021 W. 22nd Street in the College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay District 
 

 

 
The applicant has submitted a request for a land use map amendment and rezoning of 
properties located at 1015 and 1021 W. 22nd Street in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
Zoning District.  The land use map amendment would be from the current High Density 
Residential to Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use.  The rezoning is proposed to change from 
R-3, Multiple Unit Residential to C-3, High Density Commercial. The rezoning will allow for high 
density mixed-use development and accessory uses, such as parking. The current proposal is 
to use the property for vehicular parking to serve the needs of residential uses in a mixed-use 
development proposed at 2119 College Street and for useable greenspace and bicycle parking 
at the front of the lot as an amenity for public use. Staff recommended approval of the rezoning. 
The Planning and Zoning Commission has considered the request and unanimously 
recommended approval of both the amendment of the Future Land Use Map and the rezoning.  
 
Staff requests that Council set a public hearing date for August 6, 2018 to formally consider the 
land use map amendment and rezoning request. A full staff report and summary report of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission meetings will be provided to City Council prior the public 
hearing. 
 
     

-157-

Item E.2.t. 



 



 
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED CHANGES IN  
SECTION 29-107, DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND  
DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29), ZONING, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE  
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA BY REMOVING CERTAIN REAL ESTATE 

FROM THE R-3 MULTIPLE UNIT RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND PLACING SAID 
REAL ESTATE IN C-3 HIGH DENSITY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, AND ALSO ON 
AN ASSOCIATED AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEMATIC LAND USE MAP BY 
CHANGING THE DESIGNATION FROM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO 

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL/MIXED USE 
 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an amendment to Section 29-107, 
District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of 
Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and known as the Zoning Ordinance and that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
proposes to amend said Ordinance by removing the following described real estate located at 
1015 and 1021 W. 22nd Street from the R-3 Multiple Unit Residential District and placing said 
real estate in C-3 High Density Commercial district, and also proposes to amend the Schematic 
Land Use Map by changing the designation from High Density Residential to Neighborhood 
Commercial/Mixed Use, as follows: 
 
Lot Nos. 26 & 27 in Arthur P. Cottons Addition to Cedar Falls, Iowa.  
 
There will be a public hearing on said proposed change on the 6th day of August, 2018, at 7:00 
o’clock P.M., in the Council Chambers amending said Section is now on file in the office of the 
City Clerk in the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is available for reference and 
inspection by the public.  Objections to said proposed change in said Ordinance may be made in 
writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth herein and oral objections will be heard 
at said hearing. 
 

_________________________________ 
                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-159-

Item E.2.t. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
(319) 268-5169 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 29-107,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  
OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-NINE (29) 
ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 
SAID SECTION 29-107 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 
AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE THE  
CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS 

ORDINANCE.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar 
Falls and the adopted College Hill Neighborhood Plan and therefore has recommended to the 
City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area described as follows shall be 
removed from the from the R-3 Multiple Unit Residential District and placed in the C-3 High 
Density Commercial District, as follows: 
 
Lot Nos. 26 & 27 in Arthur P. Cottons Addition to Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 
interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 
hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA: 
 

-161-

Item E.2.t. 



 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 
 
Lot Nos. 26 & 27 in Arthur P. Cottons Addition to Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
Be and the same is hereby removed from the R-3 Multiple Unit Residential District and added to 
the C-3 High Density Commercial District. 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 
hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the C-3 
High Density Commercial District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning 
map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 
 
 Section 3. That said Section 29-107, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-nine (29), Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby 
re-enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 
include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED: __________________________________________ 
 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 
 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 
 
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATON: ____________________________ 
 
ADOPTED: ______________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 

                                                                          James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-162-

Item E.2.t. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 
 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: July 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Floodplain Ordinance Amendments 
 
The Iowa Department of Natural Resources conducts routine visits with communities throughout 
the State to review their floodplain ordinances. This Community Assistance Visit (CAV) provides 
assistance and evaluates the effectiveness of the City’s floodplain management program in 
conforming to the criteria for continued participation in the National Flood Insurance Program.  
The Iowa DNR noted that staff is implementing the City’s floodplain management program well. 
However, it was noted that the zoning ordinance must be updated to include certain definitions 
and amendments to floodplain regulations to conform to changes in FEMA standards. The 
Department of Planning and Community Services proposes a series of ordinance amendments 
pertaining to an update of the City’s floodplain management regulations.  
 
There are several definitions and floodplain changes that need to be added to the Cedar Falls 
Zoning Ordinance. During this amendment process, staff intends to separate the general 
definitions of the zoning ordinance from the floodplain definitions, since the meaning of these 
terms may be different for general planning purposes than for floodplain management.  
 
Based on recommendations from the Iowa Department of Natural Resources, staff recommends 
the following amendments to the zoning code:   
 

Add new subsection under Section 29-2 – Floodplain Management Definitions, applicable to 
Sections 29-155 through 29-157. Move any existing definition that relates specifically to floodplain 
management from the General Definitions section of the zoning code and add the following new 
definitions to this new subsection. This will avoid confusion and misinterpretation of the same 
terms that may be used differently for general planning purposes.  

 
Appurtenant Structure is a structure which is on the same parcel of the property as the principal 
structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. 
 
Base Flood Elevation is the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during the 
occurrence of a base flood event. 
 
Existing Construction is any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced before the 
effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. May also 
be referred to as "existing structure". 
 

-163-

Item E.2.u. 



Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, Existing is a factory-built home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to be 
affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either 
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the first 
floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, Expansion of Existing is the preparation of additional 
sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, New is a factory-built home park or subdivision for which 
the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built homes are to be affixed 
(including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site 
grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of the first 
floodplain management regulations adopted by the community. 
 
Flood insurance study means an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards 
and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations. a study initiated, funded or published 
by the Federal Insurance Administration and approved by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA), for the purpose of evaluating in detail the existence and severity of flood 
hazards, providing the city with the necessary information for adopting a floodplain management 
program, and establishing actuarial flood insurance rates.  
 
Floodplain Management is an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing 
flood damages and promoting the wise use of floodplain, including but not limited to emergency 
preparedness plans, flood control works, floodproofing and floodplain management regulations. 
 
Highest Adjacent Grade is the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to construction 
next to the proposed walls of a structure. 
 
Repetitive Loss includes flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate 
occasions during a 10-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood 
event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before 
the damage occurred. 
 
Note: a question came up during the Council Committee meeting on July 9, 2018 regarding 
the damage percentage as indicated in the above referenced definition of Repetitive Loss. 
The 25% figure is correct when calculated as an average loss over two flood events. This 
would essentially equate to 50% or more damage over the two events.  
 
Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) is the land within a community subject to the base flood. This 
land is identified on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map as Zone A, A1-30, AE, AH, AO, 
AR, A99, X Shaded and X Unshaded. 
 
Start of Construction includes substantial improvement and new construction, means the date the 
development permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement, was within 180 days of the permit date. 
 
The actual start means either the first placement or permanent construction of a structure on a 
site, such as pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of pile, the construction of columns, or 
any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a factory-built home on a 
foundation. 
 

-164-

Item E.2.u. 



Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; 
nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a 
basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include 
the installation on the property of accessory buildings such as garages or sheds not occupied as 
dwelling units or not part of the main structure. 
 
For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any 
wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building. 
 
Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the 
following criteria: 
(1) Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or other improvement of a structure, the cost of 

which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the fair market value of the structure before the 
start of construction of the improvement. This term includes structures which have incurred 
repetitive loss or substantial damage, regardless of the actual repair work performed. The 
term does not, however, include either: 
a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 

health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local 
code enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living 
conditions; or 

b. Any alteration to a historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure. 

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a structure by 25 percent or more. 
All additions constructed after February 1, 1985, shall be added to any proposed addition 
in determining whether the total increase in original floor space would exceed 25 percent. 
The term does not, however, include either: 
a. Any project or improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 

health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local 
code enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living 
conditions; or 

b. Any alteration which will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a 
historic structure. 

 
Section 29-156 F-F floodway fringe overlay district 
(e)  Performance Standards 

(16)  Detached garages, and storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar 
detached accessory structures that are incidental to a residential use shall be 
allowed in the floodway fringe district with no minimum elevation requirement 
provided that all the following criteria are satisfied.: Exemption from the elevation 
requirement for such structures may result in increased premium rates for flood 
insurance coverage of the structure and its contents: 
a. The total combined floor areas of all such structures located on the lot does not 

exceed a total of 576 square feet in area. Those portions of structures located 
less than one foot above the (0.2%) 500-year flood level must be constructed of 
flood resistant materials. 

b. The structures are not suitable for and shall not be used for human habitation. 
c. The structures will be designed to have low flood damage potential. and shall be 

used solely for low damage potential purposes such as vehicle parking and 
limited storage.  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings as 
specified in subsections (d)(4)(a)(1) through (4). 

e. The structures will be constructed and placed on the building site so as to limit 
resistance to the greatest practicable extent to the flow of floodwaters. 

-165-

Item E.2.u. 



f. Structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral 
movement which may result in damage to other structures. 

g. The structure's service facilities such as electrical, heating and ventilating 
equipment shall be elevated or floodproofed to at least one foot above the (.2%) 
500-year flood level. 

 
Finally, there are other sections of the Cedar Falls Code that make reference to the floodplain 
district. The storm water management program is regulated in Chapter 27 of the Cedar Falls 
Code. In order to be consistent with the floodplain regulations in the zoning code of Chapter 
29, the following definition of base flood elevation in Chapter 27-114 should read as follows:  

 
Base flood elevation is the elevation elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a base flood event. at all locations delineating the level of flooding resulting 
from the 100-year frequency flood event. The 100-year flood event has a one percent 
probability of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. The base flood event shall be 
considered to be the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation. 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of these Ordinance amendments 
at their regular meeting on June 13, 2018. Therefore, the Department of Community 
Development recommends that a public hearing for the floodplain amendments be scheduled on 
August 6, 2018. 
 

-166-

Item E.2.u. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: June 11, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Amendment – Midway Business Park 

The Department of Community 
Development is working with the 
property owner to amend the 
zoning restrictions placed on Lots 
7 and 8 of the Midway Business 
Park subdivision. When the 
property was up-zoned in 1995 
from R-1 to R-4, the petitioner 
agreed to limit the uses in this 
district to professional office 
development through a zoning 
agreement. This restriction was 
due to concerns from the nearby 
residential property owners with a 
potential increase in traffic and residential parking coming though the existing neighborhoods. 
When the Midway Business Park subdivision was approved in 2003, the Greenhill Circle cul-de-
sac was created and essentially isolated this area from the adjacent residential properties. This 
essentially eased the concerns about through traffic and parking from this development. Since 
then, three of the nine platted lots have been developed. The lots along the north and east side 
of Greenhill Circle remain vacant. 

It should be noted that the R-4, Residential district permits a wide range of uses including one 
and two unit dwellings, multifamily dwellings, nursing homes and hospitals. In addition, 
commercial entities such as funeral homes, hotels/motels and professional service offices are 
permitted. Since the zoning agreement is part of the zoning of these properties, any proposal to 
vary from the agreement requires a rezoning action.  

-167-

Item E.2.v. 



It is proposed to construct senior assisted living facility on Lots 7 and 8 at the northeast corner 
of the subdivision. The single story building is similar in height to nearby homes and subject to 
similar building setbacks. Use of the property for supportive housing for elderly is consistent with 
the intended purpose of the zone. The traffic to the subject properties will not affect the 
surrounding residential properties because the only access to these lots is from Greenhill Circle 
to Greenhill Drive. The property abuts a City-owned lot to the north that is used as a stormwater 
detention basin. The property also abuts a residential neighborhood to the east in Waterloo. 

Based on the proposed development of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business Park addition, staff 
supports this request for an amendment to the zoning agreement. The proposed use is allowed 
in the R-4 zoning district. Reviewing the case history of this zoning agreement and subsequent 
platting of the property, staff finds that this change to the zoning agreement will be compatible 
with the surrounding neighborhood.  

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Midway Business Park 
zoning restriction amendment at their regular meeting on June 13, 2018. Therefore, the 
Department of Community Development recommends that a public hearing for the said zoning 
agreement amendment be scheduled on August 6, 2018. 

-168-

Item E.2.v. 



Preparer Information: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319) 273-8600 

ZONING AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

This Amendment to the Zoning Agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made 
and entered into effective on this    day of  , 2018 by and 
between First Security State Bank (hereinafter the “Owner”), and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa (hereinafter the “City”)

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement was approved by City Resolution No. 9798 
on December 12, 1994 on property described as follows: 

Part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 20, Township 
89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. in Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, 
described as follows; Beginning 180 feet north of the Southeast corner of said 
Southwest Quarter; thence North 0°16’57” West 415 feet along the East line of said 
Southwest Quarter; thence North 89°50’ West along a line parallel to the South line of 
said Southwest Quarter to the East line of Midway Addition, in the City of Cedar Falls, 
Black Hawk County, Iowa; thence South 0°0’20” West to the most Southeasterly corner 
of Lot 36 in said Midway Addition; thence South 51°36’20” West to the most Southerly 
corner of said Midway Addition; thence South 38°23’40” East 357.72 feet to the South 
Quarter; thence North 19°30’ East a distance of 730 feet to the point of beginning. 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement was a part of the rezoning of property from 
the R-1, Residential Zoning District to the R-4, Residential Zoning District by Ordinance 
No. 2080 on January 9, 1995; and 

 WHEREAS, Iowa Code 414.5, as amended, provides that a City Council may 
impose reasonable conditions on granting an applicant’s rezoning request, over and 
above existing regulations, in order to satisfy public needs directly caused by the 
requested change; and 

-169-

Item E.2.v. 



2

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement contains certain additional restrictions to 
address concerns with potential traffic impacts to abutting lower density residential 
properties caused by certain higher intensity uses allowed within the R-4 Residential 
Zoning District; and 

 WHEREAS, certain conditions imposed under the original agreement have been 
satisfied, including the Lovejoy Drive cul-de-sac as part of the Midway 2nd Addition and 
the Greenhill Drive cul-de-sac as part of the Midway Business Park Addition; and 

 WHEREAS, the Midway Business Park Addition is not connected with a public 
street into the adjoining residential neighborhoods; and 

 WHEREAS, the traffic generated by the proposed development of Lots 7 and 8 will 
not interfere with the adjoining residential neighborhoods; and   

 WHEREAS, Owner acknowledges that certain conditions and restrictions are 
reasonable to address remaining issues of compatibility with the surrounding lower 
density residential neighborhood; and 

WHEREAS, Owner has voluntarily offered to use the subject property in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Zoning Agreement, as amended 
herein, to address the public needs referenced above; and  

WHEREAS, the Midway Business Park Addition is subject to said zoning 
restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, First Security State Bank, is owner of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway 
Business Park Addition; and 

WHEREAS, the First Security State Bank proposes to amend Paragraph 2 of the 
Conditions contained in the Zoning Agreement for the subject property as described 
herein by amending the use of property to professional offices, nursing homes and 
senior assisted living facilities only. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Paragraph 2 of the Conditions contained in the Zoning Agreement of the 
R-4, Residential Zoning District is hereby deleted, and the following new Paragraph 2 is 
substituted in its place: 

“That the development of the Midway Business Park Addition shall be 
shall be restricted to professional offices only on Lot 1 – 6 and Lot 9. Lots 
7 and 8 may be used for professional offices, nursing homes and senior 
assisted living facilities”. 

-170-

Item E.2.v. 



3

2. Except for the amendments to Paragraph 2 of the Zoning Agreement as 
set forth in paragraph 1 of this Zoning Agreement Amendment, the parties hereby ratify 
and confirm all remaining terms, conditions and provisions of the Zoning Agreement, as 
herein amended. 

3. The parties acknowledge that this Zoning Agreement Amendment shall 
inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon each of the Lot Owners and their 
respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns, and shall run with 
the land which comprises all of the lots and tracts in the Subdivision. 

4. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by all of the Lot 
Owners and upon approval of this Agreement by the City Council of the City. 

The foregoing conditions shall apply to the above described real estate and shall 
run with the land. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lot Owners and the City have executed this 
Agreement, to be effective as of the date stated at the beginning of this Agreement, 
which shall be the date the last party to this Agreement executes this Agreement. 

FIRST SECURITY STATE BANK 

By 
Dennis Hansen, President 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss. 

This record was acknowledged before me on the  day of  ___ ___, 2018, 
by Dennis Hansen, President of First Security State Bank. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 

-171-

Item E.2.v. 



4

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss. 

This record was acknowledged before me on the  day of  ______, 2018, by 
James P. Brown, as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, as City Clerk, of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 

-172-

Item E.2.v. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 
    M E M O R A N D U M

Legal Services Division

  

 

  

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: July 13, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to Butchering Ordinance 
 
 
On April 2, 2018, Council adopted Ordinance No. 2918 amending Chapter 6, Animals, 
of the Code of Ordinances relating to the butchering of animals on public and private 
property. Ordinance No. 2918 prohibits slaughtering, butchering and processing of 
animals on public property and also on private property if done within the sensory 
perception of persons not on the same premises. 
 
It has been brought to the attention of staff that this Ordinance as adopted potentially 
conflicts with Section 19-15 as relating to hunting on agricultural land comprised of 40 
acres or more in the City, other areas as allowed by the Chief of Police for hunting, and 
Deer Management Zones within the City. See Code of Ordinances Sections 19-15(b)(1) 
& (b)(2).  
 
Therefore, it is proposed to amend Section 6-14 as attached, which clarifies the intent 
of the Ordinance and removes any potential conflict with Section 19-15. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 

-173-

Item E.3. 



 



 

 

Sec. 6-14. – Butchering of animals prohibited. 

Except as authorized in Section 19-15, nNo person shall within the city limits slaughter, butcher 
or process any animal or fowl on public property or, within the sensory perception of any 
person not on the same premises, on private property.  Any remains must be disposed of in a 
sanitary manner and in accordance with the law.  Field dressing by authorized hunters of 
animals and fowl slaughtered in the areas designated for hunting in Section 19-15 shall be 
allowed in those areas. 

 

 

 

 

  

      

     

-175-

Item E.3. 



 



Prepared by:  Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, 
(319)273-8600 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 6-14, BUTCHERING OF ANIMALS 
PROHBITED, IN ARTICLE I, GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO 
CONFORM SAID SECTION TO SECTION 19-15 REGARDING AREAS 
DESIGNATED FOR HUNTING WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 6-14, Butchering of Animals Prohibited, of Article I, in 
General, of Chapter 6, Animals, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 6-
14, Butchering of Animals Prohibited is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 6-14. – Butchering of animals prohibited. 

Except as authorized in Section 19-15, no person shall within the city limits slaughter, butcher 
or process any animal or fowl on public property or, within the sensory perception of any 
person not on the same premises, on private property.  Any remains must be disposed of in a 
sanitary manner and in accordance with the law.  Field dressing by authorized hunters of 
animals and fowl slaughtered in the areas designated for hunting in Section 19-15 shall be 
allowed in those areas. 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                              ____________________ 
                                                                                                James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-177-

Item E.3. 



 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 9, 2018.
	[180709MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the reappointment of Michael Sulentic to the Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2024.
	[1-Reappt Memo.docx]
	[2-Library - Sulentic 5-21-18.pdf]

	b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of July 9, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Library Board of Trustees Interview - Michael Sulentic. 
(2) Recycling Facility Update.
(3) Floodplain Ordinance.
(4) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 07 09 18.doc]

	c. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a certified list for the position of Accountant.
	[Accountant-CertList7-2018.pdf]

	d. Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9.
	[1.PSE - 2018 Sidewalk Assessment.docx]

	e. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(2) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - adding Class C beer.
(3) Community Main Street (FondoFest), 100 and 200 block of Main Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 5-day permit.
	[Liquor Beer 7-16.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Affiliate TV Agreement with Hawkeye Sports Properties, LLC relative to rights to broadcast certain programs on Channel 15.
	[1-Learfield Sports agreement.docx]
	[2-learfieldagreement.pdf]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Beau's Beautiful Blessings, Inc. relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	[Signatures for FY19 Community Betterment Grant Agreements.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar Falls Community Theatre, Inc. relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar Falls Woman's Club relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	f. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Cedar Falls College Hills Partnership relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Eagle View Partners (on behalf of River Place Plaza) relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	h. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the George Wyth State Park, Iowa Department of Natural Resources, relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the North Cedar Neighborhood Association relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Volunteer Center of the Cedar Valley relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in Support of the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Symphony Orchestra Association relative to an FY19 Community Betterment Grant.
	l. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of an automated side load body for a refuse vehicle from Kilburg Equipment.
	[automated side load  cc memo FY19.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for the Henry Property Traffic Impact Study Peer Review.
	[1. Professional Services Agreement Memo.docx]
	[2. PSA.pdf]

	n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. relative to the Center Street Recreational Trail Project.
	[1. Memo SA #1.docx]
	[2. Supplemental Agreement 1 Cedar Falls Const Observation and Testing.pdf]

	o. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Amendment Number One to the Project Subaward Agreement with Iowa Homeland Security & Emergency Management Department relative to the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program.
	[1_Memo Approving Amendment No. 1 to Grant Agreement 07-16-18.docx]
	[2_Amendment No. 1 to Grant Agreement.pdf]

	p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Purchase Offer with Craig and Kathleen Olmstead, in conjunction with the Northern Cedar Falls Flood Buyout Program. (Contingent upon approval of Item E-2.o.)

	[1_Memo Approving Purchase Offer 07-16-18.docx]
	[2_Olmstead Signed Purchase Offer.pdf]

	q. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located at 1122 Clay Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.
	[1122 Clay Street - Rental to Single Conv-ALL.pdf]

	r. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Riverwise Engineering, LLC relative to the Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project.
	[1-cc memo on whitewater supplemental agreement no. 1 on 7-3-18.doc]
	[2-signed supplemental agreement no 1.pdf]

	s. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9.
	[1. PSE - 2018 Sidewalk Assessment.docx]

	t. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning from R-3, Multiple Unit Residential, to C-3, High Density Commercial, of property located at 1015 & 1021 West 22nd Street, and also on an associated amendment to the Schematic Land Use Map by changing the designation from High Density Residential to Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use.
	[1. Council Staff Memo Setting Public Hearing - College Hill rezoning R-3 to C-3.docx]
	[2. CC Notice.docx]
	[3. Ordinance Rezoning.docx]

	u. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City's floodplain regulations.
	[1-Set PH on floodplain definition amendments 7-11-18-ALL.pdf]

	v. Resolution setting August 6, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to the Zoning Agreement relative to conditions of the R-4 Residential Zoning District for property described as Lots 7 & 8 of Midway Business Park.
	[Set PH-Zoning agreement amendment-Midway Business Park-ALL.pdf]


	3. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering and disposal of dead animals, upon its first consideration.
	[1-Amend to Butchering Ord Memo (7-5-18).doc]
	[2-Final version of amended 6-14-Adobe.pdf]
	[3-Ordinance formatted 6-14.pdf]


	F. Allow Bills.
	G. City Council Referrals.
	H. City Council Updates.
	I. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that litigation, following Public Forum.
	J. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	K. Adjournment.

